
 

Date: 6th September, 2024 
 
 
To, 
The Manager, 
Department of Corporate Services, 
BSE Limited, 
Phirozee Jeejeeboy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Fort, 
Mumbai- 400 001 
 
Sub:  Submission of Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 along with the Notice 
convening 13th AGM of the Company. 
Ref: Scrip ID: MUKTA 
         Scrip Code: 535204  

 
Dear Sir/ Ma’am, 
 
In compliance with the Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed herewith the Annual Report of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2023-24 along with the Notice of 13th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
which is scheduled to be held on Monday, 30th September, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. through Video 
Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM). 
 
In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder (“Act”) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with the applicable circulars as issued by 
“Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), 
in relation to the subject matter, the AGM Notice and Annual Report has been sent only by 
electronic mode to all the Members whose email addresses are registered with the Depository 
Participants or the Company. 
 

The said Annual Report is also uploaded on the Company's website at www.mukta-
agriculture.com. 
 
Kindly take the same in your record. 
 
You are requested to take the same on your records please. 
 
Thanking you, 
Yours faithfully, 
 
For Mukta Agriculture Limited 
 

 

Mohit Khadaria 
Managing Director 
DIN: 05142395 
  

http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/
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NOTICE 

 

 Notice is hereby given that the Thirteenth(13th) Annual General Meeting of the Members of Mukta 

Agriculture Limited will be held on Monday, 30th September, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. through Video 

Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business:-  

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 
ended 31st March, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Krishan Khadaria (DIN: 00219096) who retires by rotation in 

terms of Section 152(6) of Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. Appointment of Mr. Himanshu Agarwal (DIN: 09569882) as an Independent Director: 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”), Mr. Himanshu Agarwal [DIN:- 09569882], who was appointed as an Additional 
Director of the Company in Independent Category on 2nd September, 2024 who shall hold office up 
to the date of ensuing annual general meeting, subject to the approval of the members and who has 
submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing 
Regulations and is eligible for appointment, and in respect of whom the Company has received a 
notice in writing in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company, for term of five consecutive years with effect from 2nd September, 2024 to 
1st September, 2029 and who shall  not liable to retire by rotation. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, 
deeds and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to 
this resolution.” 

 
4. To approve transactions with related parties (including material related party transactions) under 

section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder and Regulation 23 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. 

 
  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 
 
  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), read with Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other applicable provisions, if any along with the Rules made 
thereunder and other applicable laws including any amendments, modifications, variations or re - 
enactments thereof and the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions and based on the 
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recommendation/ approval of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, and in 
supersession of the earlier resolution passed by the members at the 12th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company, the approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the Company for entering 
into and /or continuing with related party transactions including Material Related Party 
Transactions/contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ agreements or modification(s) thereto, with the following 
Related Parties for an amount not exceeding the limits as detailed below, on an arm’s length basis and 
in the ordinary course of business of the Company from the Financial Year 2024-25 onwards for each 
Financial Year up to the maximum amount per annum as per details provided hereunder: 

 
      MAXIMUM VALUE OF CONTRACT / TRANSACTION (PER ANNUM w.e.f. 01.04.2024) 

Name of the 
Related Parties 

Name of 
interested 
Director(s)/ 
KMP(s) 

Nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
Transaction 

Estimated transaction 
value for the financial 
year 2024-25 
(Individually/aggregat
e (Rs. Crores) 

Nouveau Global 
Ventures Limited 

Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria and 
Mr. Mohit 
Khadaria, 
Directors  

The management 
is same except 
that Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria is 
Managing 
Director and Mr. 
Mohit Khadaria 
being Director in 
the related 
Company.  

Forms part of item 
4 of  Explanatory 
Statement 
annexed to this 
Notice 

50 

Mystic electronics 
Limited 

Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria and 
Mr. Mohit 
Khadaria, 
Directors  

The management is 
same 

Forms part of item 
4 of  Explanatory 
Statement 
annexed to this 
Notice 

50 

Golden Medows 
Export Private 
Limited 

Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria and 
Mr. Mohit 
Khadaria, 
Directors 

Director Mr. 
Krishan  Khadaria 
& Managing 
Director Mohit 
Khadaria are also 
Directors in the 
related Company 

Forms part of item 
4 of  Explanatory 
Statement 
annexed to this 
Notice 

25 

Forever 
Flourishing 
Finance & 
Investment Pvt. 
Ltd 

Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria and 
Mr. Mohit 
Khadaria, 
Directors 

Director Mr. 
Krishan Khadaria 
& Managing 
Director Mohit 
Khadaria are also 
Directors in the 
related Company 

Forms part of item 
4 of  Explanatory 
Statement 
annexed to this 
Notice 

25 

Laxmiramuna 
Investment Pvt 
Ltd 

Mr.Krishan 
Khadaria and 
Mrs. Asha 
Khadaria, 
Directors 

Directors Mr. 
Krishan Khadaria 
& Mr. Mohit  
Khadaria are also 
Directors in the 
related Company 

Forms part of item 4 
of  Explanatory 
Statement annexed 
to this Notice 

25 
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3M Enterprises Mr. Mohit 
Khadaria, 
Managing 
Director 

Managing Director 
Mr. Mohit 
Khadaria, is a 
Partner & Director 
Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria is 
authorized 
Signatory of 
Partner Company, 
Mukta Agriculture 
Limited in Related 
Firm. 

Forms part of item 4 
of  Explanatory 
Statement annexed 
to this Notice 

50 

Kasturi 
Overseas Pvt 
Ltd 

Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria and Mr. 
Mohit Khadaria, 
Directors 

Director Mr. 
Krishan  Khadaria 
& Managing 
Director Mohit 
Khadaria are also 
Directors in the 
related Company 

Forms part of item 4 of  
Explanatory 
Statement annexed 
to this Notice 

25 

Kashish Multi 
Trade Pvt Ltd 

Mr.Mohit 
Khadaria & Mrs. 
Asha Khadaria 
Directors 

Director Mrs. Asha  
Khadaria & 
Managing Director 
Mohit Khadaria 
are also Directors 
in the related 
Company 

Forms part of item 4 of  
Explanatory 
Statement annexed 
to this Notice 

25 

Anutham 
Property 
Developers Pvt 
Ltd 

Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria and Mr. 
Mohit Khadaria, 
Directors 

Director Mr. 
Krishan  Khadaria 
& Managing 
Director Mohit 
Khadaria are also 
Directors in the 
related Company 

Forms part of item 4 of  
Explanatory 
Statement annexed 
to this Notice 

25 

Mitesh Poly Pack 
Pvt Ltd 

Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria and 
Mr. Mohit 
Khadaria, 
Directors 

Director Mr. 
Krishan  Khadaria 
& Managing 
Director Mohit 
Khadaria are also 
Directors in the 
related Company 

Forms part of item 
4 of  Explanatory 
Statement annexed 
to this Notice 

5 

Pearl Arcade 
Consultants Pvt Ltd 

Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria, 
Director 

Director Mr. 
Krishan Khadaria is 
also Director in the 
related Company 

Forms part of item 
4 of  Explanatory 
Statement 
annexed to this 
Notice 

5 

Rajat Commercial 
Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. 

Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria and 
Mr. Mohit 
Khadaria, 
Directors 

Director Mr. 
Krishan  Khadaria 
& Managing 
Director Mohit 
Khadaria are also 
Directors in the 
related Company 

Forms part of item 
4 of  Explanatory 
Statement 
annexed to this 
Notice 

5 
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Vibhuti Properties 
Pvt Ltd. 

Krishan 
Khadaria and 
Mr. Mohit 
Khadaria, 
Directors 

Director Mr. 
Krishan  Khadaria 
& Managing 
Director Mohit 
Khadaria are also 
Directors in the 
related Company 

 
Forms part of item 
4 of  Explanatory 
Statement 
annexed to this 
Notice 

5 

Pearl Arcade 
Trading Pvt. Ltd. 

Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria, 
Director 

Director Mr. 
Krishan Khadaria is 
a member in the 
related Company 

Forms part of item 
4 of  Explanatory 
Statement 
annexed to this 
Notice 

5 

 

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board of Directors of 

the Company (hereinafter referred to as 'the Board' which term shall include any committee constituted 

by the Board of Directors of the Company or any person(s) authorized by the Board to exercise the 

powers conferred on the Board of Directors of the Company by this Resolution) be and is hereby 

authorised to agree, make, accept and finalize all such terms, condition(s), modification(s) and 

alteration(s) as it may deem fit and the Board is also hereby authorised to resolve and settle all 

questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise with regard to the said transactions and to finalize and 

execute all such agreements, deeds, documents and writings and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 

things in connection therewith and incidental thereto as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem 

fit without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the members or otherwise to the 

end and intent that the members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the 

authority of this resolution. 

 
  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board or any duly constituted Committee thereof in 

connection with any matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, 
ratified and confirmed in all respects.” 

By and on behalf of the Board 
For Mukta Agriculture Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Mohit Khadaria 
Managing Director 

DIN: 05142395 
     
       Registered Office: 

401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp. P. K. 
Jewellers, Dawood Baug Lane, 
Off J. P. Road, Andheri (West), 
Mumbai – 400 058 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated:  2nd September, 2024  
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NOTES: 

1. In accordance with the provisions of the Act, read with the Rules made thereunder and General Circular No. 
09/2023 dated 25th September, 2023, other Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) from 
time to time, and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFDPoD- 2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated 7th October, 2023 issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) (“the Circulars”), companies are allowed to hold Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) through video conference/other audio visual means (“VC / OAVM”) upto 30th September, 2024, 
without the physical presence of the Members at a  common venue. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, the 
AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. Hence, the proceedings of the 13th AGM shall be deemed 
to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company at 401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp. P.K. Jewllers, Dawood Baug 
Lane, Off J. P. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai- 400 058.  
 

      ALTHOUGH, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 
ATTEND AND ON A POLL TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF, BUT SINCE THIS MEETING IS BEING HELD 
THROUGH VC/OAVM UNDER THE FRAMEWORK OF MCA AND SEBI, WHERE PHYSICAL PRESENCE OF MEMBERS HAS 
BEEN DISPENSED WITH, THE FACILITY OF APPOINTMENT OF PROXY WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE. HENCE, THE PROXY 
FORM AND ATTENDANCE SLIP ARE NOT ANNEXED HERETO. 

 
2. Institutional/ Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/ HUF, NRI, etc.) attending the meeting through 

VC/ OAVM are required to send a scanned copy of its Board or governing body Resolution/ Authorisation etc., 
authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-
voting. 

 
3. The presence of the Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
 
4. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, setting out all material facts 

relating to the business to be transacted at Item No. 3 & 4 of this Notice is annexed herewith and the same should 
be taken as part of this Notice. 

 
5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 24th 

September, 2024 to Monday, 30th September, 2024 (both days inclusive) in connection with the AGM. 
 
6. Members may note that the details of the Director seeking appointment/re-appointment as required under 

Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) forms an integral part of the notice. Requisite declarations have 
been received from the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment. 

 
7. Applicable statutory records and all the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of the 13th AGM and 

the Explanatory Statement shall be available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the 
Company on all working days during business hours up to the date of the Meeting. Such documents will also be 
available electronically for inspection by the members from the date of circulation of this notice upto the date of 
AGM and during the AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to 
mukta.agriculture@gmail.com. 

 
8. Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address, bank account details and / or e-mail id 

to their respective Depository Participant (DP) in respect of their electronic shares / demat accounts and in respect 
of physical shareholding, to the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company in Form ISR-1, at M/s. Bigshare 
Services Private Limited, Office No. S6-2 6th Floor,Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves 
Road, Andheri  {E) Mumbai – 400093. Board No : 022 – 62638200 ;Fax No : 022 – 62638299 | M :+7045454392; 
Email id.: info@bigshareonline.com. 

 
9. Non-resident Indian Shareholders are requested to inform about the following immediately to the Company or its 

RTA or the concerned Depository Participant, as the case may be:- 

 the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement, and  

 the particulars of the NRE account with a Bank in India, if not furnished earlier. 

mailto:mukta.agriculture@gmail.com
mailto:info@bigshareonline.com
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10.  As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, the facility for making nomination is available for 

the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Moreover, SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-
1/P/CIR/2023/181 dated November 17, 2023 in continuation of its circular nos. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-
1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023 and SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2021/655 dated November 
03, 2021 and other related circulars, has provided the norms for furnishing PAN, KYC details and Nomination by 
holders of physical securities. Accordingly those shareholders who has not registered their nominee or not 
provided their KYC details are requested to update their record by submitting Form ISR-1 and Form No. SH-
13/Form ISR 3. Members are requested to submit the said details to their DP in case the shares are held by them in 
electronic form and to our RTA i.e M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited in case the shares are held in physical 
form. 

 
 The forms for updation of PAN, KYC, bank details and Nomination viz., Forms ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, SH13 and the said 

SEBI circular are also available on our website at www.mukta-agriculture.com. 
 
11. In compliance with the above stated SEBI Circular, the Company had sent individual communication to its 

Shareholders holding shares in the physical form requesting them to update their PAN, KYC details and 
Nomination. In order to avoid freezing of folios, such Members are requested to furnish details in the prescribed 
form as mentioned in the aforesaid SEBI Circular along with the supporting documents, wherever required, to our 
RTA, Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. at info@bigshareonline.com for immediate action. A copy of such forms can be 
downloaded from the website of the Company at https://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html or from 
the website of our RTA at https://www.bigshareonline.com/Resources.aspx.  

 
12. Pursuant to the MCA’s Circular, the Company shall publish a newspaper advertisement urging its Members (who 

have not registered their email IDs) to register their email IDs at the earliest. However, Members who have still not 
registered their email IDs, are requested to do so at the earliest, in the following manner: 

 
i. Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered / updated their e-mail address with the 

Company are requested to register / update the same by submitting duly filled and signed Form ISR-1 with the 
RTA, Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. at info@bigshareonline.com. In case of any queries/difficulties in registering the e-
mail address, Members may write to mukta.agriculture@gmail.com. 

 
ii. Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register /update their e-mail address with the 

relevant Depository Participant. The Company has entered into necessary arrangement with NSDL and CDSL to 
enable the Shareholders to dematerialize their shareholding in the Company for which they may contact the 
Depository Participant of either of the above Depositories. 

 
13. Members are requested to contact the Company’s RTA for reply to their queries/ redressal of complaints, if any at 

info@bigshareonline.com or contact Mr. Rakesh Sahewal, CFO at mukta.agriculture@gmail.com.  
 
14. In terms of Regulation 40(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be 

transferred only in dematerialised form with effect from April 1, 2019. Members may please note that SEBI, vide its 
Circular dated January 25, 2022, has clarified that listed companies, with immediate effect, shall issue the 
securities only in demat mode while processing investor service requests pertaining to issuance of duplicate 
shares, exchange of shares, endorsement, sub-division/ consolidation of share certificates, etc. In view of this as 
also to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, Members holding 
shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to demat mode. Accordingly, Members 
are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR–4, the format of which is 
available on the Company’s website under the weblink at https://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html.  

 
15. Equity Shares of the Company are traded under the compulsory demat mode on the Stock Exchange. Considering 

the advantages of scrip less / demat trading, shareholders are advised to get their shares dematerialized to avail 
the benefits of scrip less trading. 

 
16. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 
 

http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/
mailto:info@bigshareonline.com
https://www.bigshareonline.com/Resources.aspx
mailto:info@bigshareonline.com
mailto:mukta.agriculture@gmail.com
mailto:info@bigshareonline.com
mailto:mukta.agriculture@gmail.com
https://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html
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17. Members who would like to express their views / ask questions as a speaker at the Meeting may pre-register 
themselves by sending a request from their registered e-mail address mentioning their names, DP ID and Client 
ID/folio number, PAN and mobile number at mukta.agriculture@gmail.com between Monday, 16th September, 
2024 (9.00 a.m. IST) and Monday, 23rd September, 2024 (5.00 p.m. IST). Only those Members who have pre-
registered themselves as a speaker will be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The 
Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 

 
18. Members desirous for any information or queries on accounts / financial statements or relating thereto are 

requested to send their queries at least ten days in advance of the AGM date to the Company at 
mukta.agriculture@gmail.com to enable the Company to collect the relevant information and answer them in the 
meeting. 

 
19. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any 

change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their 
Demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statements of holdings should be obtained from the concerned DPs 
and holdings should be verified from time to time. 

 
20.   COMMUNICATION THROUGH E-MAIL: 
 
 The situation of global warming demands preservation and protection of environment, which can be attained and 

/ or sustained by preserving and growing more trees on the earth. In order to protect the environment, we as a 
responsible citizen can contribute in every possible manner. Considering this object in mind, members are 
requested to register his / her e-mail id to receive all communication electronically from the Company. This would 
also be in conformity with the legal provisions.  

 
 Members may note that the Company would communicate important and relevant information, notices, 

intimation, circulars, annual reports, financial statements, any event based documents etc. in electronic form to 
the e-mail address of the respective members. Further, as per the statutory requirement, the above stated 
documents are also disseminated on the Company’s website www.mukta-agriculture.com . 

  
 Members are requested to support green initiative by registering their e-mail id (a) in case of electronic / demat 

holding with their respective Depository Participant and (b) in case of physical holding either with the RTA by 
sending e-mail to info@bigshareonline.com or with the Company by sending e-mail to 
mukta.agriculture@gmail.com by quoting name and folio number. 

 

 This initiative would enable the members to receive communication promptly besides paving way for reduction in 
paper consumption and wastage. You would appreciate this initiative taken by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
and your Company’s desire to participate in the initiative. If there is any change in e-mail id, shareholder can 
update his / her e-mail id in same manner as mentioned above. 

 
 Pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, in view of the prevailing situation, owing to the difficulties 

involved in dispatching of physical copies of the Notice of the 13th AGM and the Annual Report for the financial 
year 2023-24, are being sent only by email to the Members. Members may note that this Notice and Annual 
Report 2023-24 will be available on the Company’s website www.mukta-agriculture.com, websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and website of Bigshare Services Private Limited, RTA (agency for 
providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. https://ivote.bigshareonline.com . 

 
21. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONICS MEANS:  
 

22.1 In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 
Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-voting services provided by 
Bigshare i-vote, on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. The instructions for e-voting are given herein below 
in this Notice. 

 

mailto:mukta.agriculture@gmail.com
mailto:mukta.agriculture@gmail.com
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/
mailto:info@bigshareonline.com
mailto:mukta.agriculture@gmail.com
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com,/
http://www.bseindia.com/
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
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22.2 The Members can join the 13th AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of 
the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned herein below in the Notice. The facility 
of participation at the 13th AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first 
served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend 
the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
22.3 In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of 

names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 
 

22.4 The remote e-voting period commences on Friday, 27th September, 2024 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on Sunday, 29th 
September, 2024 (5:00 p.m. IST). During this period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on Monday, 23rd September, 2024 i.e. cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. The 
e-voting module shall be disabled by Bigshare i-vote for voting thereafter. Those Members, who will be present in 
the AGM through VC / OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and 
are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the AGM. The 
voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 
as on the cut-off date. 

 
22.5 The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/ participate in the 

AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 
 

22.6 Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the 
Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at 
ivote@bigshareonline.com  or call us at: 1800 22 54 22. However, if he/she is already registered then he/she can 
use his/her existing User ID and password for casting the vote. 

 
22.7 The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Arvind Dhanraj Baid (Mem. No. 155532) partner of M/s. Arvind Baid & 

Associates, Practicing Chartered Accountant as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting during the AGM and remote 
e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
22.8 The Results of remote e-Voting and e-Voting at the Meeting shall be declared by the Chairman or by any other 

director duly authorised in this regard. The Results declared along with the Report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed 
on the Company’s website at www.mukta-agriculture.com and on the website of Bigshare at 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com immediately after the results are declared and simultaneously communicated to 
the Stock Exchanges in compliance with Regulation 44(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
i. The voting period begins on Friday, 27th September, 2024 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on Sunday, 29th September, 

2024 (5:00 p.m. IST). During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Monday, 23rd September, 2024 may cast their vote 
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by Bigshare for voting thereafter. 

 
ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting 

venue. 
 

iii. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed 
entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ 
resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional 
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. 
This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the 
shareholders. 

mailto:ivote@bigshareonline.com
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/
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In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to 
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat 
accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their 
vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 
enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

 
iv. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility 

provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised 
to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
1. Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 

shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user 
id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on 
Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 
 

 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for 
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of 
BIGSHARE the e-Voting service provider and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. BIGSHARE, so that the 
user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.  For joining the meeting click 
on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option, Select event for which you 
are desire to attend the AGM/EGM under the dropdown option, click on the option VOTE 
NOW on right hand side top corner, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed beside of 
“VIDEO CONFERENCE LINK” option. 
 

2. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration  

 
3. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 

Number and PAN No. from a link https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin 
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress, and also able to directly access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers. Click on BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to 
i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 

 
Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either 
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, 
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-
Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed 
to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will 
be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be redirected 
to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 
mode) login through 
their Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful 
login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and 
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

     

Login type Helpdesk details 

 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode 
with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 23058738 
and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode 
with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30  

 
2. Login method for e-Voting for shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat 

mode & physical mode is given below: 
 

 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  
 
 Click on “LOGIN” button under the ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ section to Login on E-Voting Platform.                              
 
 Please enter you ‘USER ID’ (User id description is given below) and ‘PASSWORD’ which is shared separately on 

you register email id. 
o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account should enter 16 Digit Beneficiary ID as user id. 
o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 

ID as user id. 
o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio Number registered with the 

Company as user id. 
 

Note If you have not received any user id or password please email from your registered email id or contact i-vote 
helpdesk team. (Email id and contact number are mentioned in helpdesk section). 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
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 Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and login.  

 
NOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-Voting system of 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their 
existing user id and password to login. 
 
 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ tab and then Click on ‘Forgot 

your password? 
 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and click on ‘Reset’. 
(In case a shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address). 
 
Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting portal: 

 
 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal. 
 Select event for which you are desire to vote under the dropdown option. 
 Click on “VOTE NOW” option which is appearing on the right hand side top corner of the page. 
 Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option “IN FAVOUR”, “NOT IN FAVOUR” or “ABSTAIN” and click on 

“SUBMIT VOTE”. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm, else “CANCEL” to modify. Once 
you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  

 Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen and also you will receive 
an email on your registered email id. During the voting period, members can login any number of times till 
they have voted on the resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed subsequently. 

 Shareholder can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” option on investor 
portal. 

 
3. Custodian registration process for i-Vote E-Voting Website: 

 
 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  
 Click on “REGISTER” under “CUSTODIAN LOGIN”, to register yourself on Bigshare i-Vote e-Voting Platform. 
 Enter all required details and submit. 
 After Successful registration, message will be displayed with “User id and password will be sent via email on 

your registered email id”. 
NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  and/or voted 
on an earlier event of any company then they can use their existing user id and password to login. 

 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘CUSTODIAN LOGIN’ tab and further Click on 
‘Forgot your password? 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and click on ‘RESET. 
(In case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her    registered e-mail address). 

 
Voting method for Custodian on i-Vote E-voting portal: 

 
 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 

 
Investor Mapping: 

 
 First you need to map the investor with your user ID under “DOCUMENTS” option on custodian portal. 

o Click on “DOCUMENT TYPE” dropdown option and select document type power of attorney (POA). 
o Click on upload document “CHOOSE FILE” and upload power of attorney (POA) or board resolution for 

respective investor and click on “UPLOAD”. 
Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board resolution has to be named as the “InvestorID.pdf” (Mention Demat 

account number as Investor ID.) 
o Your investor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display.  

 
 Investor vote File Upload: 

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
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 To cast your vote select “VOTE FILE UPLOAD” option from left hand side menu on custodian portal. 
 Select the Event under dropdown option. 
 Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the same file under upload 

document option by clicking on “UPLOAD”. Confirmation message will be displayed on the screen and also 
you can check the file status on display (Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed 
subsequently).  

 Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” option on custodian 
portal. 

 
Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting: 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Shareholder‘s other than individual 
shareholders holding shares in Demat 
mode & Physical mode. 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding E-voting, you 
may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and i-Vote e-Voting 
module available at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download 
section or you can email us to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 
1800 22 54 22. 

 
4. Procedure for joining the AGM through VC/ OAVM: 

 
For shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode & physical mode is given 
below: 

 
 The Members may attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com under Investor 

login by using the e-voting credentials (i.e., User ID and Password). 
 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
 

 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal. 
 

 Select event for which you are desire to attend the AGM under the dropdown option. 
 

 For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed beside of “VIDEO CONFERENCE 
LINK” option. 
 

 Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM are as under:- 

 
 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the meeting. The procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM/EGM is same as the 
instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.  

 
 Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 

casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM/EGM. 

 
 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will 

not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 
 The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting 

on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
  

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
mailto:ivote.bigshareonline.com
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
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Helpdesk for queries regarding virtual meeting: 

 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding virtual meeting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (‘FAQs’) available at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download section or you can email us 
to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 22. 

 

 

By and on behalf of the Board 
For Mukta Agriculture Limited 

 
 
 

Sd/- 
Mohit Khadaria 

Managing Director 
DIN: 05142395 

 
   
 Registered Office: 

401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp. P.K 
Jewellers, Dawood Baug Lane, Off J. 
P. Road, Andheri (West), 
Mumbai – 400 058 

  
 
 Place: Mumbai 
 Dated: 2nd September, 2024 

  

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
mailto:ivote.bigshareonline.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 The following Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 sets out the 

material facts relating to the business mentioned at item Nos. 3-4 of the accompanying notice dated 2nd 

September, 2024. 

 

ITEM NO. 3  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 149, 161 (1) & any other provisions (as may be applicable) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of Directors of the 

Company appointed, Mr. Himanshu Agarwal (DIN: 09569882) as an Additional Director of the Company in 

the Independent category with effect from 02nd September, 2024. Pursuant to provisions of Section 161 

(1) of the Act, Mr. Himanshu Agarwal would hold office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting.    

 

The Company has received a notice in writing, from Mr. Himanshu Agarwal, (DIN: 09569882) under the 

provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of Director of 

the Company for consideration of members in the Annual General Meeting.   

 

The Company has received from Mr. Himanshu Agarwal, (DIN: 09569882), consent in writing to act as a 

Director of the Company and declaration to the effect that he is not disqualified under Section 164 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Also Mr. Himanshu Agarwal, has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the 

criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act.  

  

Mr. Himanshu Agarwal is a Qualified Chartered Accountant & a Lawyer having an extensive experience in 

the field of law. He is designated Partner in Bellator Legal Services LLP since 2020. He possesses deep 

understanding of Legal matters and has vast experience of dealing in court cases of Indian Companies. 

Being a Chartered Accountant, he is well equipped with finance and accountancy. 

 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Himanshu Agarwal, (DIN: 09569882) fulfills the conditions specified in the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder and that he is independent of Management.   

 

Pursuant to Regulation 17 (1C) of SEBI (LODR), 2015; a listed entity shall ensure approval of shareholders 

for appointment of a person on the Board of Directors is taken at the next general meeting or within a time 

period of three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier. Accordingly, the Board 

recommends the Special Resolution in relation to the eligibility and appointment. of Mr. Himanshu Agarwal 

(DIN: 09569882) as an Independent Director for a term of five (5) consecutive years, for approval by the 

shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Board considers that his experience and 

expertise would enable the Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively and efficiently and 

therefore it would be desirable to appoint him as an Independent Director of the Company, for a period up 

to 27th September, 2029. He will not be liable to retire by rotation.  

 

Accordingly, pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee the Board 

recommends the passing of the Special Resolution as set out in the Item no. 3 of the Notice for 

appointment of Mr. Mr. Himanshu Agarwal, (DIN: 09569882) as an Independent Director, not liable to 

retire by rotation for the approval of the Members.  

 

A statement containing his profile is given as per Annexure 1. 
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The relevant documents in this regard are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of 

the Company during office hours between 11.30 a.m. to 4.00 p.m. on all working days except Holidays up 

to the date of the Annual General Meeting.  

 

Except Mr. Himanshu Agarwal, (DIN: 09569882), being an appointee, none of the other Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested or deemed to be 

concerned or interested , financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3.  

 

The Board recommends the resolution as set out in the Item no. 3 of the accompanying Notice for the 

approval of the members of the Company by way of Special Resolution. 

 

ITEM NO. 4 

 
The Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“LODR”), aim to ensure transparency in the transactions 

and dealings between the Company and its related parties. Section 188 of the Act read with Rule 15 (3) of 

the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (the 'Rules') and Regulation 23 of 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, (“LODR”), as amended provides that for entering into any contract or arrangement with a related 

party, in case such contract or arrangement is in the ordinary course of business of the Company and is on 

an arm's length basis, prior approval of the Audit Committee shall be obtained.  

 

Further, if the proposed contract or arrangement is not in the ordinary course of business or not on an 

arm's length basis and the amount thereof exceeds the threshold limits specified under Rule 15 (3) of the 

Rules, and Reg. 23 of SEBI (LODR), 2015, as amended, then prior approval of the shareholders shall also be 

required to be obtained in addition to the approvals of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.   

 

Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, (“LODR”), provides that all material related party transactions whether they are in the 

ordinary course of business or on an arm's length basis, shall require prior approval of the shareholders by 

a resolution and all the related parties shall abstain from voting on such resolutions. 

 

Explanation to Regulation 23(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“LODR”), states that transaction with a related party shall be 

considered material, if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with previous 

transactions during a financial year, exceeds rupees one thousand crore or ten per cent of the annual 

consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of the listed entity, 

whichever is lower.  

 

Based on Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations and provisions of Section 188 of the Act applicable if any and 

the Rules made thereunder, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company 

have approved the proposed transactions along with the annual limits, that the Company may enter into 

with its Related Parties (as defined in Section 2 (76) of the Act). 

 

The maximum value of the transactions as mentioned in the table below is for each financial year 

commencing from 2024-2025 and onwards. 

 

 The particulars of the transactions are as under: 
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A Name of the Related Parties As mentioned in the resolution 

B Name      of    the    Director     or     Key 
Managerial Personnel who are related 

Mr. Krishan Khadaria and Mr. Mohit Khadaria 

C Nature of relationship As mentioned in the resolution 

D Nature,    material     terms and particulars 
of contract or arrangement 

1. The Company may be required to grant business 
advance / loan and/or make investment in the 
securities and/or capital contribution in the entity 
mentioned in the resolution as a part of strategic 
business decision, to the extent necessary to support 
the business operations of the said entities or vice 
versa. 

2. Additionally, the Company may also be required to 
provide security by way of mortgage / hypothecation 
/pledge of securities held and/or charge on any of its 
movable/immovable properties to the extent of the 
loan that may be availed by the said entities from term 
lenders or vice versa. 

3. The Company may also be required to provide 
corporate guarantee as collateral security to the extent 
of the loan that may be availed by the said entities 
from term lenders. The corporate guarantee shall be 
provided for the entire duration of the loan or vice 
versa. 

4. The Company may also enter into transaction for 
purchase / sale/lease of immovable properties 
including FSI and TDRs with the said entities.  

5. The Company may enter in transaction of sale, 
purchase or supply of any goods or materials or 
availing or rendering of any services. 

6. The Company may enter in any other transaction 
which may be considered as material as per Regulation 
23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015, as amended from 
time to time. 

E Monetary value As mentioned in the resolution. 

 
If any of the above stated transaction limit exceeds from the limit specified above, prior approval of 

members shall be required. 

 

Apart from the above, none of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives are, in 

any way, are concerned or interested in the resolution as set out at No.4 of the Notice.  
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In supersession of the ordinary resolution passed at 12th AGM of the Company held on 29th  September, 

2023, the Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in Item No.4 of the accompanying Notice 

for the approval of the members in terms of Section 188 (3) of the Act and Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. 

  
By and on behalf of the Board 
For Mukta Agriculture Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Mohit Khadaria 
Managing Director 

DIN: 05142395 
 
 

Registered Office: 
401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp. P. K. Jewellers, 
Dawood Baug Lane, Off J. P. Road, Andheri 
(West), 

         Mumbai – 400 058 
  
 Place: Mumbai 

    Dated: 2nd September, 2024 
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATION 2015 IN RESPECT OF APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS  

 
 

Name of Director Mr.Krishan Khadaria Mr. Himanshu Ramavtar Agarwal    

 DIN No. 00219096  09569882 

Date of Birth & Age 15/05/1961 & 63 Years 20/01/1994 

Nationality  Indian Indian 

Date of first appointment  29/08/2011 02/09/2024 

Educational Qualification B.com, Chartered Accountant and 
Bachelor of Law 

Chartered Accountant and Bachelor of Law 

Brief profile and nature of 
their expertise in specific 
functional areas 

Mr. Khadaria, Promoter Director 
and founder of the Company, is a 
qualified Chartered Accountant 
as well as a Bachelors in Law and 
is specialized in auditing, 
taxation, business & Corporate 
legal and financial consultant, 
loan and lease syndication, 
capital market operations. 

Mr. Himanshu Ramavtar Agarwal is a Chartered 
Accountant and LL.B by qualification and 
practising in Mumbai as a corporate lawyer by 
which he is having vide experience in Law and 
Accounting Concepts. 
Mr. Himanshu, being a Chartered Accountant 
having well equipped knowledge related to the 
finance and taxation.his areas of expertise 
includes Company Law matters, Compliances 
under various laws like Compliances under 
various laws like Compliances Act, 2013 and 
Income Tax Act, 1972. 
 He is also associated as a designated Partner in 
Bellator Legal Services LLP since 2020 by which 
he possesses deep understanding of Legal ma  
tters and has vast experience of dealing in court 
cases of Indian Companies. 

Terms & Conditions of 
appointment/Re-
appointment 

Re-appointment on retiring by 
rotation 

Appointed for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive 
years from 2nd September 2024 upto 1st 
September, 2029 and shall not be liable to retire 
by rotation. 

Details of Remuneration 
last drawn  

NIL NIL 

Details of Remuneration 
sought to be paid 

NIL NIL 

Memberships 
/Chairmanships of 
Committees of other Public 
Companies (includes only 
Audit Committees and 
Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee) as on 
31/03/2024  
 

Nouveau Global Ventures 
Limited 
-Audit Committee (Member) 
 
Mystic Electronics Limited 
-Audit Committee (Member) 
-Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee (Member) 
 
 

Dhenu Buildcon Infra Limited 
(ceased w.e.f. 21st August, 2024) 
-Audit Committee (Chairperson) 
-Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
(Chairperson) 

List of directorship held in 
other Companies as on 
closure of financial year 
2023-24 

1. Pearl Arcade Consultant 
Private Limited 

2. Anutham Property 
Developers Private Limited 

3. Mukta Agriculture Limited 
4. Kashish Multi Trade Private 

Limited 
5. Kasturi Overseas Private 

Nil 
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Limited 
6. Laxmiramuna Investments 

Private Limited 
7. Forever Flourishing Finance & 

Investments Private Limited 
8. Golden Medows Export 

Private Limited 
9. Nouveau Global Ventures 

Limited 
10. Vibhuti Properties Private 

Limited 
11. Mitesh Poly Pack Private 

Limited 

List of listed entities in 
which the person also 
holds the directorship 
along with listed entities 
from which the person has 
resigned in the past three 
years 

1. Mystic Electronics Limited 
2. Nouveau Global Ventures 
Limited 
3. Mukta Agriculture Limited 
 
Mr. Krishan Khadaria has not 
resigned from any listed company 
in past three years 

1. Dhenu Buildcon Infra Limited (ceased w.e.f 21st 
August, 2024) 

Shareholding in the 
Company 

7,14,564 Equity Shares 
 

NIL 

Relationship with other 
Director 

Not related to any Director of the 
Company except Mr. Mohit 
Khadaria 

Not related to any Director of the Company 

No. of Board Meetings 
attended during the F.Y. 
2023-24 

7 of 7 Not applicable 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
To, 
The Members, 
MUKTA AGRICULTURE LIMITED 
 
 Your Directors are pleased to present the 13th Annual Report along with the Audited Accounts for the 

Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024. 

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY  
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended March 
31, 2024 

Year ended March 
31, 2023 

Profit/(Loss) before interest, depreciation, tax and Extra 
Ordinary Items 

6.769  762.09 

Less: Exceptional Items 199.216  1571.05 

Less: Depreciation/amortization   

Profit/(Loss) before interest, tax and Extra Ordinary Items (192.447) (808.95) 

Less: Finance Costs - - 

Profit/(Loss) before tax and Extra Ordinary Items - - 

Less: Provision for taxes on income - - 

--Current tax  - - 

--Deferred tax liability / (asset) - - 

--MAT Credit Entitlement 0.811 - 

Profit/(Loss) before Extra-Ordinary Items (193.258) (808.95) 

Extra Ordinary Items (Net of Tax)   

Profit/ (Loss) for the year (193.258) (808.95) 

Other Comprehensive Income  24.791 (68.11) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (168.468) (877.06) 

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
The liquidity position of the company has been strained due to the challenging financial environment. The 

company's revenue streams have been adversely affected by the market conditions. 

 

During the year under review, the Company has incurred a total net loss of Rs. 1,68,46,854/- for the 
financial year ended 31st  March 2024 as against Net loss of Rs. 87,70,633/- incurred in the previous 
financial year. The Basic Earnings per Share for the financial year ended 31st March 2024 is Rs. -0.891/- as 
against Rs. -3.731/- for the corresponding previous financial year ended 31st March 2023.  

 
3. DIVIDEND & RESERVES  

In view of the losses incurred during the year and considering the Company’s ongoing financial 

performance, the Board of Directors do not recommend to distribute any dividend for the Year under 

review and therefore there is no amount proposed to be transferred to the General Reserves. 

 
4. SHARE CAPITAL 
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There is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital during the financial year 
under review: 
The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2024 is Rs. 21,68,17,710/- (Rupees Twenty-One Crore 
Sixty- Eight Lakhs  Seventeen Thousand Seven Hundred and Ten Only) divided into 2,16,81,771 (Two Crores 
Sixteen Lakhs Eighty-one Thousands Seven Hundred and Seventy-One) Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 
10/- each. 

 
Further, during the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares with or without differential 
voting rights. It has neither issued employee stock options nor Sweat Equity Shares and does not have any 
scheme to fund its employees to purchase the shares of the Company. 

 

5. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) 
 
 Director retires by rotation: 
 In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of Articles of 

Association of the Company, Mr. Krishan Khadaria, Director of the Company, retires by rotation, at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM) and, being eligible, he offers himself for re-appointment. Your 
Directors recommend his re-appointment as Director of the Company. The brief resume of Mr. Krishan 
Khadaria, nature of expertise, disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se, details of directorships 
and committee membership held in other companies of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed, along 
with his shareholding in the Company, as stipulated under Secretarial Standard-2 and Regulation 36 of the 
Listing Regulations, is appended as an Annexure to the Notice of the ensuing AGM. 

 
 Appointment and cessation of Directors during the year:  
 

During the period under review,  there were following changes in the composition of Board of Directors of 
the Company:- 
 

 Cessation of Mr. Narendra Gupta (DIN: 00418421) from the position of Independent Director of the 

Company w.e.f 18th May, 2023. 

 Appointment of Mr. Manaklal Agrawal (DIN: 10214780) as an Independent Director of the Company 

w.e.f 28th July, 2023. 

 Re-appointment of Ms. Niraali Thingalaya (DIN: 08125213) as an Independent Director for second term 

of five consecutive years w.e.f. 29th September, 2023. 

 Cessation of Mrs. Asha Khadaria (DIN: 00219112) from the position of Non-executive Non-Independent 

Director of the Company w.e.f 27th November, 2023. 

 Cessation of Mr. Manoj Bhatia (DIN: 01953191) from the position of Independent Director of the 

Company w.e.f 30th March, 2024. 

   
 Declaration by Independent Directors: 

  
 In terms of the provisions of sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16 of SEBI Listing 

Regulations including amendments thereof, the Company has, inter alia, received the following declarations 
from all the Independent Directors confirming that: 

 
• they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of the Act, read with the Rules 

made thereunder and Listing Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their 
status as Independent Directors of the Company; 

• they have complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed under Schedule IV to the Act; and  
• they have registered themselves with the Independent Director’s Database maintained by the Indian 

Institute of Corporate Affairs.  
 
 In the opinion of the Board, all Independent Directors possess requisite qualifications, experience, expertise 

and hold high standards of integrity required to discharge their duties with an objective independent 
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judgment and without any external influence. List of key skills, expertise and core competencies of the 
Board, including the Independent Directors, forms a part of the Corporate Governance Report of this 
Integrated Annual Report. 

 
 
 Appointment and Cessation of KMP during the year: 

 
    During the year under review, there is no Appointment and Cessation of KMP in the Company. 

 
Pursuant to Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) of the Company as on 31st March, 
2024 are: 

 Mr. Mohit Khadaria, Managing Director  

 Mr. Rakesh Sahewal, Chief Financial Officer 

 Mr. Aashish Garg, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 

Information regarding the directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment: 
 

 Appointment of Mr. Himanshu Agarwal (DIN: 09569882), as an Additional Non-executive director 
in the Independent category with effect from 2nd September, 2024 for the period of 5 consecutive 
years, subject to the approval of the members at ensuing 13th AGM of the Company. 

 
      The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 2nd September, 2024 based on the recommendation of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company, approved the appointment of Mr. Himanshu 
Agarwal (DIN: 09569882) as an Additional director (in the capacity of an Independent Director) of the 
Company with effect from 2nd September, 2024 who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria 
of independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and is 
eligible for appointment under the provisions of the Act, the Rules made thereunder and the Listing 
Regulations, as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a 
term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from 2nd September, 2024 to 1st September, 2029 subject to 
the approval of the members in the ensuing 13th AGM of the Company to be held on 30th September, 2024. 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the Independent Director has submitted declaration 
that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act along with Rules framed 
thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
In view of the above, consent of the members for appointment of Mr. Himanshu as an Independent 
Director, was sought by way of Special Resolution under the Item No. 3 of the resolution to be passed at the 
13th AGM scheduled to be held on 30th September, 2024. 
 
Familiarization Program: 

 
        In terms of Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, at 

the time of appointing an Independent Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to them, which, 
inter alia, explains the roles, functions, duties, and responsibilities expected of them as a Director of the 
Company. The Director is also thoroughly briefed on the compliances required under the Act, the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, and other statutes. The Managing Director also have one to-one discussions with the 
newly appointed Director to familiarize them with the Company’s operations. As per regulation 46(2) of SEBI 
Listing Regulations, 2015, the terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors and the details 
of familiarisation programme are available on the website of the Company under the web link: 
https://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html  

 
6. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 During the year, there was no change in the nature of business activities of the Company. 

  

https://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html
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7. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 The Company has complied with the applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India. 
 
8. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Act the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge 

and ability, confirm that: 
 

a)        In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2024, the applicable 
Accounting Standards had been followed and there is no material departures from the same; 

 
b)        They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the Loss of the Company for that period; 

 
c)        They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenanceof adequate accounting records in 

accordance with theprovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
d)        They have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 on a going 

concern basis; 
 
e)        They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
 
f)         They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 

9. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD  
 During the year under review, 7 (Seven) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. For details of the 

meetings of the board, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this report. 
 

10. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 Pursuant to requirement under Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors has constituted various committees of Board such 
as: 

 
            a)  Audit Committee; 
            b) Nomination & Remuneration Committee; and 
            c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 
 
 The details with respect to the composition, powers, roles, terms of reference, number of meetings held, 

attendance at the meetings etc. of statutory committees are given in detail in the Corporate Governance 
Report, which forms part of this Report. 

 
11. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 Your Company does not have any subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associate Company for the year ended 31st 

March, 2024. 

 

12.     PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 The information as per the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of 

Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report. 

However, as per first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and second proviso of Rule 5(2) of the Rules, the 

Report and Financial Statements are being sent to the Members of the Company excluding the statement of 
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particulars of employees under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Rules. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of 

the said statement may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company or on the 

email address of the Company i.e. mukta.agriculture@gmail.com  

 

 The statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197(12) of the Act read with the Rule 5 (1) of 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”) is mentioned 

below. 

 

 Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:  

 
a) The Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 

company for the Financial Year 2023-24: Not applicable as your Company is not providing any 
remuneration to the Directors of the company. 

 
b) Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, CFO and Company secretary : 

During the year under review, no Sitting fees or remuneration was paid to the Directors & percentage   
increase in the salary of CFO is 0.39%. There was no increase made in the salary of  Company Secretary. 
 

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year 2023-24: During 
the Financial Year under review, the median remuneration is Rs 2,79333 p.a. and the percentage increase in 
Median Remuneration of employees is 11.48%. 

 
d) During the year, there were 5 (Five) number of permanent employees are on roll of the company, however 

as on 31st March, 2024. 
 
 
e) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration: 
 
Average percentile decrease made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
last financial year is 18.56%. As compare to percentile increase in the managerial remuneration which is 
24.45% increase made in salaries of other employees. There are no other exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the remuneration of key managerial personnel and increase in remuneration has been in 
accordance with the Company’s policies.  

 
f) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration Policy ofthe 

Company.  
 

13. SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 
2013 

 Your Company has in place a formal policy for prevention of sexual harassment of its women employees in 
line with “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. The constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 is not applicable on your Company and there 
were no complaint about sexual harassment during the year under review. 

 
14. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
       Since the Company is neither engaged in any manufacturing activity nor the Company has any 

manufacturing unit, therefore there prescribed particulars with regards to compliance of rules relating to 
conservation of Energy and Technology absorption pursuant to Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with Rule – 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on your Company. 

mailto:mukta.agriculture@gmail.com
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15. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT-GO  
 During the period under review there were no foreign exchange earnings or out flow. 
 
16. DEPOSITS   
       During the year under review, your Company has not invited or accepted any deposits from the public in 

terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

17. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 The details of loans and Investments covered under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 for the financial year 2023-24 are given in the 
Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report. 

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 All related party transactions entered into during the period under review were placed before the Audit 

Committee and the Board for their approval, and the same are disclosed in the financial statements of your 
Company. Further, in terms of the provisions of section 188(1) of the Act read with the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all contracts/ arrangements/transactions entered into by the 
Company with its related parties during the year under review were in ordinary course of business of the 
Company, on an arm’s length basis and in accordance with the policy on related party transactions 
formulated by the Company and reviewed on a periodic basis. 

 
 In line with the requirements of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, your Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions which is available on 
Company’s website at https://www.mukta-
agriculture.com/pdfs/Policy_on_Related_Party_Transaction.pdf. The same was amended by Board of 
Directors from time to time in order to comply with the various amendments in SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 that took place during the financial year 2023-24. 

During the year under review, the requirement of making disclosure of material related party transactions 
pursuant to Section 134(3) of Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company. 

 
 The related party disclosures as specified in Para A of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of the Listing 

Regulations are given in the Financial Statements. 
 
19. STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 M/s. Sunil Vankawala and Associates, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 110616W) were appointed 

as Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, at the Annual General Meeting held on 
30th  September, 2020 till the conclusion of the 14th  AGM to be held in 2025. 

 
 In accordance with the Section 40 of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, the appointment of Statutory 

Auditors is not required to be ratified at every AGM. Thus, M/s. Sunil Vankawala and Associates will 

continue to hold office till the conclusion of 14th  AGM. The Auditors have confirmed that they are not 

disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company. The Notes on financial statement referred to in 

the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.  

 The Auditor’s Report on financial statements is a forming part of this Annual Report. There has been no 
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report. During the 
year, the Statutory & Internal Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

 
20. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, read with Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, the Board of 
Directors of the Company had appointed M/s. Ritika Agarwal & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary 

https://www.mukta-agriculture.com/pdfs/Policy_on_Related_Party_Transaction.pdf
https://www.mukta-agriculture.com/pdfs/Policy_on_Related_Party_Transaction.pdf
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as Secretarial Auditors to undertake the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The 
Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE II, which forms an integral part of this report.  

 
 During the year, the Secretarial Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the Act, 

therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3) (ca) of the Act. 
 

During the period under review, following observations were made by the Secretarial Auditor: 
 

Observations Management Remark 

The Company has filed the Form AOC-XBRL for the 
F.Y 2022-23 by paying additional fees of Rs. 1400/-, 
under section 137 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 
12(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

Due to some ongoing technical glitch with the XBRL 
filing software the Company couldn’t generate the 
XML file on time which in turn caused delay in filing 
of the Form AOC-XBRL. 

The Company passed an Ordinary Resolution instead 
of Special Resolution for appointment of Manaklal 
Agarwal as an Independent Director of the Company 
as prescribed under Regulation 25 (2A) of SEBI 
(LODR), regulations 2015. 

Please note that, Mr. Manaklal Agarwal (DIN: 
10214780), was duly appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company, vide an ordinary resolution 
passed in the 12th Annual General Meeting held on 
30th September, 2023. While passing the resolution 
our then Company Secretary did keep in mind the 
pre-requisite stated under section 152 of Companies 
act, 2013 which demands passing of an ordinary 
resolution in the general meeting for appointment of 
an Independent Director, however we happen to 
inadvertently overlook the requirement of passing a 
Special Resolution as prescribed under Regulation 25 
(2A) of SEBI (LODR), regulations 2015 which was 
inserted w.e.f. 1st January, 2022. Our Company 
“Mukta Agriculture Limited” is a well compliant 
company and is committed to maintaining the 
highest standards of corporate governance. We 
understand that we should have been more diligent 
in meeting the regulatory requirements and 
consequently we are unquestionably apologetic for 
the bona fide mistake made at the end of the 
Company, however we would like to bring to you 
attention that despite the resolution with respect to 
Mr. Manaklal’s appointment as an Independent 
Director of the Company was put up as an Ordinary 
Resolution, but it was still passed with a requisite 
majority of 99.986% votes in its favor. In view of the 
above clarification, we henceforth assure that we 
will stay informed with latest updates in laws & 
regulations and would beforehand consider every 
aspect of regulations and provisions that shall be 
made applicable to the Company. 

 
21. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
 In compliance with the Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a detailed report on Corporate Governance forms an integral part of this 
Annual Report. A Certificate from the statutory auditors, M/s. Sunil Vankawala and Associates, confirming 
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is appended to the Corporate Governance Report as 
ANNEXURE V. 
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 A Certificate of the MD and CFO of the Company in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations is 
also forming part of Corporate Governance Report as ANNEXURE IV. 
 

22. ANNUAL RETURN 
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and amendments 

thereof and in compliance of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, effective August 28, 2020, the draft 
Annual Return for the financial year 2023-24 in prescribed form MGT-7  is placed on the website of the 
Company at the following link: https://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html. 

 
 This Annual Return is subject to such changes / alterations / modifications as may be required to carry out 

subsequent to the adoption of the Directors’ Report by the Shareholders at the 13th Annual General 
Meeting and receipt of Certificate from Practising Company Secretary (PCS) which the Shareholders agree 
and empower the Board / Company and the copy of the final Annual Return as may be filed with the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs would be furnished on the website of the Company. 

 
23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES INITIATIVES 
 The prerequisite in terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 of corporate social responsibility does 

not apply to the Company. 
 
24. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 
 The Company has adequate and robust Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and 

complexity of its operation. The Internal Control System is placed to safeguard and protect from loss, 
unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and 
reported to the Management. Internal Audit is carried out in a programmed way and follow up actions were 
taken for all audit observations. Your Company’s Statutory Auditors have, in their report, confirmed the 
adequacy of the internal control procedures. 

 

25. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 As required under Regulation 34 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, a detailed Management Discussion and Analysis Report have been given separately as 
“Annexure I” forming part of the Annual Report. 

 
26. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY  
 Your Company has formed a Whistle Blower Policy for establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and 

employees to report genuine concerns regarding unethical behavior and mismanagement, if any. The said 

mechanism also provides for strict confidentiality, adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who 

use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee in 

appropriate cases. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committeepertaining to the Whistle 

Blower Policy. 

 The said Whistle Blower Policy has been disseminated on the Company’s website at https://www.mukta-

agriculture.com/investors.html.  

 

27. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD 
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3), Section 149(8) and Schedule IV of the Act read with SEBI 

(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Annual Performance Evaluation of the 

Board, the Directors as well as Committees of the Board has been carried out. The performance evaluation 

of all the Directors and the Board as a whole was conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted 

by Nomination & Remuneration Committee, details of which are provided in the Corporate Governance 

Report.  

https://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html
https://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html
https://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html
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 The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board and the 

performance evaluation ofthe Non-Independent Directors was carried out bythe Independent Directors in 

their separate meeting. The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 
28. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

 The Board of Directors of the Company has made a Risk Management Policy which require them to aware 

the shareholders of the Company regarding development and implementation of risk management plan for 

the Company, including identification therein of elements of risks, if any, which in their opinion might 

threaten the existence of the Company, the management plan to mitigate the same and ensuring its 

effectiveness. The Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. The 

details of the Policy have been posted on the Company’s website www.mukta-agriculture.com. 

 

29. DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY  
     The Board of Directors has framed a Policy which lays down a framework in relation to the remuneration of 

Directors, KMP and other employees of the Company.  

The said Policy is available on the Company’s website http://www.mukta-

agriculture.com/pdfs/NominationRemunerationPolicy.pdf. 

30. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
 

 There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, between 
the end of the financial year of the Company i.e. 31st March, 2024 and the date of this Report. 

 
31. COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT 
 In accordance with Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the provision relating to maintenance of cost 

records and requirement of cost audit are not applicable to the Company during the year under review due 

to business activities carried out by the Company. 

 
32. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS /COURTS /TRIBUNALS  

 
During the year under review, no significant or material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or 
Tribunals which impacts the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

 
33. DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATIONS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE & BOARD’S CONSIDERATION UPON IT: 

 
 The Audit Committee generally makes certain recommendation to the Board of Directors of the Company 

during their meetings held to consider the financial results and such other matters placed before the Audit 
Committee as per the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 from time to time. During the year the Board has considered all the recommendations 
made by the Audit Committee and has carried on the recommendations suggested by the Committee to its 
satisfaction. Thus, there are no recommendations unaccepted by the Board during the year under review. 

 
34. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 

BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 
 
During the year under review, there was no application made before National Company Law Tribunal for 
initiation of insolvency proceeding against the Company nor any proceeding were pending under the 
insolvency and bankruptcy code, 2016 (31 of 2016). 
 

http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/pdfs/NominationRemunerationPolicy.pdf
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/pdfs/NominationRemunerationPolicy.pdf
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35. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME 
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF: 
 

 During the year, there are no such instances and no settlements have been done with banks or financial 
institutions. 

 
36. GENERAL: 

 
 Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following    items as there 

were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 
i) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 
ii) The Company does not have any scheme or provision of money for the purchase of its own shares 

by employees/ Directors or by trustees for the benefit of employees/ Directors 
iii) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company. 
iv) there were no foreign exchange earnings or out flow. 

 
37. GREEN INITIATIVES: 

 

 The Company supports and pursues the ‘’Green Initiative’’ of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government 

of India. Members are requested to support green initiative by registering their e-mail id (a) in case of 

electronic / demat holding with their respective Depository Participant and (b) in case of physical holding 

either with the RTA by sending e-mail to info@bigshareonline.com or with the Company by sending e-mail 

to mukta.agriculture@gmail.com  by quoting name and folio number. 

     This initiative would enable the members to receive communication promptly besides paving way for 
reduction in paper consumption and wastage. You would appreciate this initiative taken by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs and your Company’s desire to participate in the initiative. If there is any change in e-mail 
id, shareholder can update his / her e-mail id in same manner as mentioned above. 

 Further, pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, in view of the prevailing situation, owing to the 
difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the Notice of the 13th  AGM and the Annual Report 
for the financial year 2023-24, are being sent only by email to the Members. Members may note that this 
Notice and Annual Report 2023-24 will be available on the Company’s website www.mukta-agriculture.com, 
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. 
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mailto:info@bigshareonline.com
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 Your Directors also sincerely appreciate the high degree of professionalism, commitment and dedication 

displayed by employees at all levels thereby contributing largely to the growthand success of the Company. 

 

By and on behalf of the Board 

For Mukta Agriculture Limited 

 

                                                                                 Sd/-                              Sd/- 

                            Krishan Khadaria      Mohit Khadaria 

                   Director                   Managing Director 

                   DIN: 00219096         DIN: 05142395 
Registered Office: 
401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp. P. K. Jewellers, 

Dawood Baug Lane, Off J. P. Road, 

Andheri (West), Mumbai – 400 058 

 

Place: Mumbai  

Dated: 2nd September, 2024 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

 Corporate Governance is a set of defined principles, processes and systems which govern a Company. The 

elements of Corporate Governance are independence, transparency, accountability, responsibility, compliance, 

ethics, values and trust. The Company believes that business excellence is the reflection of the professionalism 

and ethical values of its management and employees. The basic philosophy of Corporate Governance in the 

Company is to achieve business excellence and dedicate itself for increasing long-term shareholder value, 

keeping in view the needs and interests of all its Stakeholders. The Company ensures to comply with the 

requirements of Corporate Governance listed in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Listing Regulations’).  

 
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 At Mukta Agriculture Limited, we believe and continuously endeavor to achieve good governance through 

timely disclosures, transparency, accountability and responsibility in all our dealings with the employees, 

shareholders, clients and community at large. The Board of Directors represents the interest of the Company's 

Stakeholders and continuously strives for optimizing long-term value by way of providing necessary guidance 

and strategic vision to the Company. The Board also ensures that the Company's management and employees 

operate with the highest degree of ethical standards through compliance with the Code of Conduct adopted by 

the Company. 

 

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
1.1 Size and Composition of the Board 

 

   As on 31st  March, 2024, the Board consists of 4(four) Directors, of which 2 (two) are Independent Directors 

including a Woman Director, 1 (one) is Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and 1 (One) Executive 

Director. The Company does not have permanent Chairman on the Board of the Company, Board appoints 

Chairman in every Board Meeting. The Board composition is in conformity with the applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and Listing Regulations as amended from time to time.  

 Further, all the Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the 

Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act along with rules framed thereunder. In terms of 

Regulation 25(8) of Listing Regulations, they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or 

situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge 

their duties. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has 

confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing 

Regulations and that they are independent of the management. 

1.2 The composition of the Board of Directors as on 31st March, 2024, their attendance at Board Meetings held 
during the year and the last Annual General Meeting along with the number of shares and convertible 
instruments held by non- executive directors is given as under: 

 
 

Name of Director Category Attendance No. of Shares 
held in the 
Company 

Board 
Meeting 

Last AGM 

Mr.Krishan Khadaria Non-executive and Promoter 7 of 7 Yes 7,14,564 

Mr. Mohit Khadaria Executive-Promoter 6 of 7 Yes 3,912 
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Mr.Manaklal Agrawal Non-Executive & Independent 5 of 5 Yes - 

Mrs. Asha Khadaria* Non-Executive & Non-Independent 4 of 4 Yes 2,07,203 

Mr. Manoj Bhatia** Non-Executive & Independent 7 of 7 Yes - 

Mr.Narendra Gupta*** Non-Executive & Independent 1 of 1 NA - 

Mrs. Niraali Santosh 
Thingalaya 

Non-Executive & Independent 7 of 7 Yes - 

 

 *Mrs. Asha Khadaria (DIN:00219112), tendered her resignation from the position of non-executive non-
independent director of the Company with effect from 27th November, 2023.  

 **Mr. Manoj Bhatia(DIN:01953191) non-executive independent director of the Company has ceased from the 
Board of the Company with effect from 30th March, 2024, due to completion of his second tenure as an 
independent director in the Company. 

  ***Mr. Narendra Gupta (DIN: 00418421), tendered his resignation from the position of non-   executive 

independent director of the Company with effect from 18th May, 2023. 

2.3 The names and category of the Directors, their outside Directorships, their other Membership and 

Chairmanship of Board Committees as on 31st March 2024 are mentioned hereunder: 

Name of Director Designation Category No of 
Directorship in 
other 
Companies* 

Position in outside 
Committees* 

Member Chairman 

Mr.Krishan Khadaria Director Non-executive & 
Promoter 

2 3 - 

Mr. Mohit Khadaria Managing Director Executive-
Promoter 

2 1 - 

Mr.Manaklal Agrawal Independent 
Director 

Non-Executive 1 - 2 

Mrs.Niraali Thingalaya Independent 
Director 

Non-Executive 2 3 1 

 

NOTE: 1) *Excluding Private Companies, Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies 

2)**Chairmanships/ Memberships Committee only include Audit Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship. 

 

Name of Director Name of the Listed Entity Designation Category 

Mr.Krishan Khadaria Nouveau Global Ventures 
Limited 

Managing 
Director 

Executive Director  
 

Mystic Electronics Limited  Director Non-Executive-Promoter 

Mr. Mohit Khadaria Mystic Electronics Limited Managing 
Director 

Executive Director-Promoter 

Nouveau Global Ventures 
Limited 

Director Non-Executive-Promoter 

Mr. Manaklal Agrawal Mystic Electronics Limited Director Independent-Non Executive 
Director 

Mrs.Niraali Thingalaya Nouveau Global Ventures 
Limited 

Director Independent-Non Executive 
Director 
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Mystic Electronics Limited Director Independent-Non Executive 
Director 

 

 There are no inter-se relationships between the Board members except between Mr. Krishan Khadaria & Mr. 

Mohit Khadaria. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfills the conditions as specified in 

Listing Regulations and are independent of the management.  

 

 Necessary resolution seeking approval of members of the Company for re-appointment of Mr. Krishan Khadaria 

as Director who retire by rotation forms an integral part of the Notice convening 13th Annual General Meeting 

(AGM) of the Company. Attention of the members is invited to the relevant item of the Notice of the AGM 

seeking their approval for re-appointment of Directors. Relevant information as required under the Listing 

Regulations is appended in the AGM Notice. 

 

 The number of Directorship(s), Committee Membership(s), Chairmanship (s) of all the Directors is within 

respective limits prescribed under the Act and Listing Regulations as amended from time to time. 

 

1.3 As stipulated under Schedule V of Listing Regulation list of core skills/expertise/competencies as identified by 
the Board of Directors of the Company as required in the context of Company’s business and sector for it to 
function effectively and those actually available with the Board is given below. 

 

S. No. Name of Director Skills/expertise/competence 

1.  Mr. Krishan Khadaria 
 

1. Corporate Governance and Ethics 

2.  Regulatory, Government and Security matters 

3. Accounting, Finance and Legal 

4. Taxation 

5. Risk Management 

6. Talent Management 

7. Understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulation and policy, 

8. Senior Management Experience 

9. Human Resource 

2.  Mr. Mohit Khadaria 1. Information Technology 

2. Global Business 

3. Thought Leadership 

4. Human Resource 

5. General Management 

6. Talent Management 

7. Understanding of relevant laws, rules, regulation and policy, 

3.  Mrs.NiraaliThingalya 1. Accounting and Finance 

2. Corporate Governance and Ethics 

3. Human Resource 

4. Senior Management Experience 

4.  Mr. Manaklal Agrawal 1. Strategic Thinking 
2. Understanding of the best corporate governance practices, 

structure, processes and practices 
3. Accounting, Finance & Legal 
4. sInformation Technology, Systems & Computer knowledge 

 
1.4 Board Meeting held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 

 
 During the year, the Board met 7 (Seven) times on 28th April, 2023; 2nd June, 2023; 28th July, 2023; 1st 
September, 2023; 10th November, 2023; 1st February, 2024; 29th March, 2024. The maximum gap between any 
two Board Meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days. The interval between two Board meetings 
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was well within the maximum period mentioned under Section 173 of the Act and the Listing Regulation.The 
necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 

 
1.5 Familiarization Programme: 

In terms of Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, at the 

time of appointing an Independent Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to them, which, inter alia, 

explains the roles, functions, duties, and responsibilities expected of them as a Director of the Company. The 

Director is also thoroughly briefed on the compliances required under the Act, the SEBI Listing Regulations, and 

other statutes. The Managing Director also have one to-one discussions with the newly appointed Director to 

familiarize them with the Company’s operations. As per regulation 46(2) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the 

terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors and the details of familiarisation programme 

are available on the website of the Company under the web link http://www.mukta-

agriculture.com/investors.html. 

1.6 Board Independence 
Our definition of ‘Independence’ of Directors is derived from Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16 of 

Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors provide an annual confirmation that they meet the criteria of 

independence. Based on the confirmations/disclosures received from the Directors and on evaluation of the 

relationships disclosed, as per the requirement of Regulation 25(9) of the Listing Regulations, the Board 

confirms, that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions as specified under Schedule V of the Listing 

Regulations and are independent of the Management. The Board includes two Independent Directors as on 

31st March, 2024. 

1.7 Independent Directors’ Separate Meeting: 
 

 Pursuant to Schedule IV of the Act read with Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Independent Directors met only once on 29th  March, 2024 without 

attendance of Non-Independent Directors and Members of the Management. The Independent Directors 

reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. The Board of Directors also 

discussed on the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management 

and the Board which is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably performs their duties. All the 

eligible independent directors attended the meeting. 

 The Company have received declaration of independence from all the Independent Directors under Section 

149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, regarding compliance with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, in 

line with the provision of Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (“Listing Regulations”). On receiving of the same, it has been confirmed that in the opinion of Board, the 

independent directors fulfil the conditions specified in Listing Regulations and are independent of the 

management. 

 The Company have also received a declaration from all the Independent Directors under Rule 6 sub-rule (3) of 
The Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, regarding inclusion of their name in 
Data Bank of Independent Director maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs at Manesar . 

 
1.8 Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the expiry of his tenure 

along with a confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons other than those 
provided- Mr. Narendra Gupta (DIN: 00418421), ceases from the position of Independent Director of the 
Company w.e.f 18th May, 2023 to pursue other long-term goals.   
 
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
The Board Committees play a crucial role in the Governance Structure of the Company and have been 
constituted to deal with specific areas/activities as mandated by applicable regulations, which concern the 

http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html
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Company and need a closer review. The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board 
to carry out clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed by Members of the Board, as part of 
good governance practices. The Board Committees meet at regular intervals and take necessary steps to 
perform the duties entrusted to them by the Board. The Chairperson of the respective Committee informs the 
Board about the summary of the discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The minutes of the Meeting of 
all Committees are placed before the Board for review.  
 
The Company has 3 Board Level committees. The role & composition of the committees including the number 
of meetings held & related attendance during the financial year 2023-24 are as follows: 

 

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 The Audit Committee acts as the link between the management, the Statutory and Internal Auditors and the 

Board of Directors of the Company. It assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities of monitoring 

financial reporting processes, reviewing the Company’s established systems and processes for internal financial 

controls, governance and reviewing the Company’s statutory and internal audit activities. 

2.1 Brief description of terms of reference : 
 The role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee are inter-alia as under: 

 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

 Recommending the appointment and removal of Statutory Auditors, fixation of audit fee and approval for 

payment for any other services; 

 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval; 

 Review with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors’ report thereon before 

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

 Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 

Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Act. 

 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

 Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 

 Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report, if any; 

 Review of the quarterly and half yearly financial results with the management and the statutory auditors; 

 reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 

agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 

recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;  

 Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon; 

 Review and monitor statutory auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process; 

 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 
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 Consideration of the reports of the internal auditors and discussion about their findings with the 

management and suggesting corrective actions wherever necessary; 

 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

 Review and monitor the end use of funds raised through an isue and related matters; 

 Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in suchmanner as may 

be prescribed and review its functioning; 

 Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background etc. of the candidate; 

 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary; 

 To review the information required as per SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 Authority to review / investigate into any matter covered by Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

matters specified in Part C of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. 

 The Audit Committee also looks into the matters as are specifically referred to it by the Board of Directors 

besides looking into the mandatory requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

2.2 Composition & Attendance of the Committee: 
 

The composition of the Audit Committee is in compliance with the Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations and the 

provisions of Section 177 of the Act and rules made thereunder. As on 31st March, 2024, the Audit Committee 

comprises of 3 (Three) Directors. Mr. Manaklal Agrawal as the Chairman with Mr. Krishan Khadaria and Mrs. 

Niraali Thingalaya as its members. All the members of Audit Committee are Non-Executive Directors, out of 

whom 2 (two) are Independent Directors. All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate as 

defined in Regulation18 (1)(c) of the Listing Regulations. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as 

Secretary to the Committee. 

Details of Meetings & Attendance at such Committee meetings : 

During the year under review, the audit committee met 4 (four) times viz. 28th April, 2023; 28th July, 2023;; 10th 

November, 2023, 1st February, 2024. The maximum gap between any two Committee Meetings was less than 

one hundred and twenty days. 

The details of composition of the Audit Committee and attendance at the meeting during the financial year are 

as under. 

Name Category Position 

No. of Meetings 

Attended Total 
eligible 
meetings 

Mr. Manaklal Agarwal* Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 0  0 

Mr. Manoj Bhatia** Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 4 4 

Mr. Krishan Khadaria Non-executive Director Member 4 4 

Mr.Narendra Gupta# Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 1 1 
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Mrs. Niraali Thingalaya## Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 4 4 

 
The then Chairman of the Audit Committee had attended the last AGM of the Company held on 29th September 

2023. The Audit Committee Meetings were also attended by Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditor and the 

Statutory Auditors as required.  

NOTES: 

*Mr. Manaklal Agarwal (DIN: 10214780) appointed with effect from 29th March, 2024 as   Chairman of the 
Audit Committee. 
**Mr. Manoj Bhatia (DIN:01953191) has ceased with effect from 29th March, 2024, from the chairmanship of 
Audit Committee. 
#Mr. Narendra Gupta (DIN: 00418421) ceased with effect from 18th May, 2023, from the Board and 
membership of audit committee. 
##Mrs. Niraali Thingalaya was appointed as the Member of the Audit Committee Meeting with effect from 2nd 
June, 2023 due to resignation tendered by Mr. Narendra Gupta effect from 18th May, 2023. 
 
The Chairman of the Audit Committee has attended the last AGM of the Company held on 29th  September, 
2023. The Audit Committee Meetings were also  attended by Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditor and the 
Statutory Auditors as required. 

 
3. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 Pursuant to Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and 

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee. 

3.1 Brief description of terms of reference 
 The scope and functions of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in accordance with Section 178 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations.The Board has clearly defined the terms of reference 

for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, which is as follows: 

     Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 

recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel 

under Companies Act 2013 and other employees. 

     Devise a policy on Board diversity. 

     Recommend to the Board appointment of Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP” as defined by the Act) and 

executive team members of the Company (as defined by this Committee). 

    Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance and support the Board and Independent Directors in 

evaluation of the performance of the Board, its committees and individual Directors. 

     Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management 

in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and 

shall carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance. 

     To ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully; relationship of remuneration to 

performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks. 

     Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between 

fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of 

the Company and its goals. 

     Framing, recommending to the Board and implementing, on behalf of the Board and on behalf of the 

Shareholders, policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) & other Employees, 

and any other compensation payment 



MUKTA AGRICULTURE LIMITED                                  ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 

 
 

 

 

41 
                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

 

 
3.2 Composition & Attendance of the Committee  
 
         As on 31st March, 2024, Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of 3 (three) Non-Executive 

Directors, out of whom 2 (two) Directors are Independent Directors. During the year, the Committee met 2 

(Two) times viz. 21st July, 2023 and 29th March, 2024. 

 The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in compliance with the Regulation 19 of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and the provisions of Section 178 of the 

Act and rules made thereunder. The details of composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

and the attendance at the meeting during the financial year are as under: 

Name Category Position 

No. of Meetings  

Attended Total eligible 
meetings 

Mrs.Niraali Thingalaya* Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Chairman 2 2 

Mr. Krishan Khadaria 
 

Non-executive Director Member 2 2 

Mr. Manoj Bhatia** Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Member 1 1 

Mr. Manaklal Agarwal# Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Member 1 1 

 
 

 The then Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee was present at the last Annual General 
Meeting of the Company held on 29th September, 2023. Mr. Aashish Garg, Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer of the Company acted as Secretary to the Committee. 

 
 *Mrs. Niraali Thingalaya (DIN:  08125213) appointed as Chairman of the Committee with effect from 2nd June, 

2024, due to cessation of Mr. Narendra Gupta. 
 
 *Mr. Manoj Bhatia (DIN:01953191) has ceased as a member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee with 

effect from 29th March, 2024. 
 
 #Mr. Manaklal Agarwal (DIN: 10214780) was appointed as Member of the Committee with effect from 29th 

March, 2024. 
  

3.3 Performance Evaluation  
 
 The Company policy provides for the manner and mode to evaluate performance of the Board, Committees, 

Independent Directors and Non-Independent Directors. The criteria for the performance evaluation of the 

Directors includes (a) Attendance of each Director (b) Preparedness of each Director(c) Participation in 

meaningful discussion (d) Conductand behaviour of each Director (e) Effectiveness of thedecision taken based 

on deliberations etc. The evaluation process includes review, discussion and feedback from the directors in 

reference to set criteria and questions. Evaluation of Performance of the Board, its Committees, every 

Independent Director and Non-Independent Directors for the Financial Year 2023-24 has been carried out 

following the manner and process as per the policy in this respect. The Directors are satisfied with the 

performance and evaluation. 

 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations, 

the Annual performance evaluation was carried out for 2023-24 by the Board in respect of its own performance, 
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the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration 

and Stakeholder Relationship Committees. 

 The evaluation process includes review the performance of individual directors who were evaluated on 

parameters such as degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities, effectiveness of meetings etc, discussion and 

feedback from the directors in reference to set criteria. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the 

evaluation process  

4. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the 
Company has in place the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

 
4.1.1  Brief description on Terms of reference 

 
 The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as follows: 
 

 Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/ 
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/ 
duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 

 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services 
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

 Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by 
the shareholders of the Company. 
 

4.2  Composition and Attendance of the Committee 
 
 The Stakeholders Relationship Committee oversees, inter alia, timely redressal of shareholders’ grievances 

such as issues involving transfer and transmission of shares, issue of duplicate certificates, recording 

dematerialization / re-materialization, non-receipt of dividend, annual report etc. The Committee also 

reviews the systems and procedure followed to resolve investor complaints and suggests several measures 

for improvement as may be necessary. 

 

 The stakeholders’ relationship committee was constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 20 of 

SEBI Listing Regulations read with section 178 of the Act.  

 

 As on 31st March, 2024, the Committee comprises of 3 (three) directors out of which Chairman is Mr. 

Manaklal Agarwal-Non-Executive Independent Director. The Committee met 2 (two) times during the 

financial year viz. 21st July, 2024 and 29th March, 2024. 

 

 The details of composition of the Committee and the attendance at meeting are as under. 

Name Category Position 

No. of Meetings 

Attended Total eligible 
meetings 

Mr. Manaklal Agarwal* Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Chairman 1 1 

Mr. Manoj Bhatia** Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Chairman 1 1 

Mr. Krishan Khadaria 
 

Non-executive Director Member 2 2 
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Mrs. Niraali Thingalaya# Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Member 2 2 

 
 Mr. Manoj Bhatia, the then Chairman of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was present at the last 

Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th September, 2023. 
 

NOTES: 
 
*Mr. Manaklal Agarwal (DIN: 10214780) was appointed as Chairman of the Stakeholders  Relationship 
Committee with effect from 29th March, 2024 due to cessation of Mr. Manoj Bhatia. 
 
 # Mr. Manoj Bhatia (DIN: 01953191) ceased from the chairmanship of Stakeholders Relationship   
Committee with effect from 29th March, 2024. 
  
#Mrs. Niraali Thingalalya (DIN: 08125213) was appointed as member of the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee with effect from 2nd June, 2024 due to cessation of Mr. Narendra Gupta (DIN: 00418421) from 
the Board and membership of the Committee with effect from 18th May, 2024. 
 

4.3 Compliance Officer 
 

 Mr. Aashish Garg (Membership No. 19991 ) Company Secretary is designated as Compliance Officer of the 

Company. The designated e-mail ID for investor service and correspondence is 

mukta.agriculture@gmail.com.  

4.4 Complaints/Queries received from Shareholders 
 

 Continuous efforts are made to ensure that grievances are resolved more quickly to the complete 

satisfaction of the investors. However during the year, the Company has received NIL complaints, and there 

were no investor complaints pending as on 31st March, 2024. The status of complaints, if any, is periodically 

reported to the Committee. 

 

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 
 There is no pecuniary relationship or transaction between the Company and any of the Non-Executive 

Independent Directors of the Company. 
 

 None of the directors including independent director(s) of the Company had received remuneration 

including sitting fees during the year under review. The Company does not have any stock option scheme. 

None of our Directors are eligible for any severance fees. 

 In accordance with the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015,the Remuneration Policy have been adopted by the board of the 

Company and which have been disclosed available on the Company’s website http://www.mukta-

agriculture.com/pdfs/NominationRemunerationPolicy.pdf.  

6. SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
 

As of 31st March, 2024, the senior management personnel of the Company comprise Mr. Mohit Khadaria, 
Managing Director; Mr. Krishan Khadaria, Non-executive Director; Mr. Rakesh Sahewal, Chief Financial 
Officer; and Mr. Aashish Garg, Compliance Officer & Company Secretary.  

 
7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 
7.1 The details of the last three Annual General Meetings are given below: 

 

mailto:mukta.agriculture@gmail.com
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/pdfs/NominationRemunerationPolicy.pdf
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/pdfs/NominationRemunerationPolicy.pdf
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AGM Financial Year Date Time Location  

12th  AGM 2022-23 29/09/2023 12:30 am Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio 
Visual Means (“OAVM”) deemed to be 
conducted at the registered office of the 
Company 

11th AGM 2021-22 29/09/2022  12:45 pm Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio 
Visual Means (“OAVM”) deemed to be 
conducted at the registered office of the 
Company  

10th AGM 2020-21 27.09.2021 12:30 pm Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio 
Visual Means (“OAVM”) deemed to be 
conducted at the registered office of the 
Company 

 
   No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting was held during the year 2023-24. 

 
7.2 Special Resolution: 
 
  The following are the details of the Special Resolutions passed at the last 3 AGM. 

Date of AGM Summary of Special Resolution passed 

29.09.2023 1. To Approve Continuation of Mr. Manaklal Agarwal (DIN:10214780) as a 
Non-Executive Independent Director beyond the age of 75 years. 
2. Re-Appointment of Mrs. Niraali Thingalaya (DIN: 08125213) as an 
Independent Director 

29.09.2022 Re-Appointment Of Mr. Narendra Gupta (DIN: 00418421) As An Independent 
Director 

27.09.2021 NONE 

 
 

7.3 Details of Resolution passed through Postal Ballot: 
 

The Company has not passed any Special Resolution through Postal ballot last year and there is no 

resolution proposed to be passed by postal ballot at this ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 

Quarterly/ Annual Results The results of the Company are published in one leading national 
(English) & one vernacular (Marathi) newspapers and intimated to the 
Stock Exchange as required under the Listing Regulations and also 
uploaded on the website of the Company. 

Newspapers in which results are generally 
published 

The Standard Post (English) and Mumbai Lakshdeep (Marathi), regional 
daily newspapers.  

Website, where displayed www.mukta-agriculture.com     

Official news releases All the official news releases are displayed on the above mentioned 
website of the Company. 

Presentation made to institutional investors 
or to the analysts 

During the year, no presentations were made to institutional investors or 
to the analysists. 

 

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
 

a. Annual General Meeting & Book Closure: 

http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/
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 Date and time of 13th AGM: Friday, 30th September 2024 at 1:00 P.M. 
 

 Venue of AGM: There is no requirement to have a venue for the AGM as the Company is conducting 
meeting through VC/ OAVM pursuant to the MCA and SEBI Circulars. For details, please refer to the Notice 
of 13th Annual General Meeting. 

 
Book Closure period:  Tuesday, 24th September 2024 to Monday, 30th  September, 2024 

 

b. Financial Year: 1st  April each year to 31st  March of next year. 
 

c. Financial calendar 2024-25 (Tentative): Our tentative calendar for declaration of the quarterly results 
during financial year 2023-24 is as follows: 

 

First Quarter Results :  On 14th August, 2024 

Second Quarter & Half Yearly Results : On or before November 14, 2024 

Third Quarter Results : On or before February 14, 2025 

Fourth Quarter & Annual Results: On or before May 30, 2025 

 

d. Dividend payment date: Not Applicable. 

e. Listing on Stock Exchanges: 
 

Name of the Exchange(s) on which 
the shares of Company are listed 

BSE limited 

Address of Exchanges(s) Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400023 

Stock Code 535204 

ISIN Number INE160O01031 

 

f. Payment of Annual Listing Fees: The Company had paid the Annual Listing Fees of the 
Stock Exchanges and Annual Custodial Fees of the Depositories for the FY 2023-24. 

g. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent: 
BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
Office No. S6-2 6th Floor, 
Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre 
Mahakali Caves Road 
Andheri  {E) Mumbai – 400093. 
Board No : 022 – 62638200 | Extn : 206 
Fax No : 022 – 62638299 | M :+7045454392 
Email id.: info@bigshareonline.com 
Website: www.bigshareonline.com 
 

h. Outstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants Or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion Dates and likely impact on 
equity: Not Applicable 

 

i.   The Equity Shares of the Company are not suspended from trading on Stock exchange so the disclosure 
in this regards is not required. 

 

j.   Share Transfer System:  
   The equity shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in demat form. Transmission, 

dematerialisation of shares and all other investor related matters are attended to and processed by the 
Company’s RTA “M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd.” Pursuant to Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, 
the requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in 

http://www.bigshareonline.com/
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the dematerialised form with respective Depositories i.e., National Securities Depository Limited and 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited.  

 
   To enhance the ease of dealing in securities market by investors, SEBI vide its several circulars has 

mandated the listed companies to issue securities in demat form only while processing service requests 
viz. to issue of duplicate securities certificate, renewal / exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, 
sub-division / splitting of securities certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/folios, 
transmission and transposition. Shareholders holding shares in physical form are accordingly advised to 
avail the facility of dematerialisation by getting in touch with any Depository Participant having 
registration with SEBI for safeguarding their holdings and managing the same hassle free. 

 
   Equity Shares in physical form are processed by the RTA and approved by the Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee. All the documents received from shareholders are scrutinized by the 
Company’s RTA. The shares lodged for transfer etc. are processed and share certificates duly endorsed 
are returned within the stipulated time, subject to documents being valid and complete in all respects. 
The Board has authorized the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee to sub-delegate its powers to the 
Officers of the Company for prompt reply/ redressal of investor requests/ complaints. 

 
   Your Company obtained, a certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice, certifying that all 

certificates for transfer, transmission, sub-division, consolidation, renewal, exchange and deletion of 
names were issued as required under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations and were duly filed 
with the Stock Exchanges. 

 

k.      Stock Market Price On BSE: 
  The High/Low of the market price of the Company’s equity shares traded on the BSE Limited during the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2024  are as follows: 
                                                                                                                                             

Share Price (Rs.) 

Month High Low Close 

April, 2023 3.24 2.21 2.67 

May, 2023 3.14 2.25 2.72 

June, 2023 3.49 2.55 2.90 

July, 2023 3.28 2.56 3.04 

August, 2023 3.60 2.75 3.19 

September, 2023 3.69 3.05 3.27 

October, 2023 3.49 3.10 3.31 

November, 2023 3.45 3.13 3.30 

December, 2023 3.56 3.18 3.31 

January, 2024 4.85 3.24 4.41 

February, 2024 5.05 3.76 4.08 

March, 2024 4.20 3.33 3.33 

 

l. Shareholding Pattern As on 31st March, 2024 
 

CATEGORY 
 

No. of Equity 
Shares  

Total % 

Promoters Holding   
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Indian Promoters 1142252 5.27 

Foreign Promoters 0 0.00 

SUB TOTAL (A) 1142252 5.27 

Public Shareholding   

Institutional Investors 0 0.00 

Non-Institutional Investors   

Individuals: 
(Capital Up To  Rs. 1 Lakh) 
(Capital Greater Than  Rs. 1 Lakh)  
 

3676448 

11922991 

16.96 
54.99 

Hindu Undivided Family (HUF) 1168097 5.39 

NBFCs registered with RBI - - 

Bodies Corporate  3687623 17.01 

Clearing Member 1224 0.01 

Non Resident Indians 33107 0.15 

Relatives of Promoters  50019 0.23 

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 10 0.00 

SUBTOTAL (B) 12590832 94.73 

                                                                TOTAL (A+B) 21681771 100.00 
 

m. Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity: 
 

 As mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), SEBI vide its Circular dated 25 January 
2022, has mandated Listed Companies to issue securities in demat form only, while processing service 
requests such as issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; 
renewal/exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-division/ splitting of securities certificate, 
consolidation of securities certificates/folios, transmission and transposition. 

 
 As on 31st March, 2024, approximately 63.34% of shareholding was held in Dematerialised form with 

National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited. The entire 
Promoter’s holdings is in electronic form and the same is in line with the directions issued by SEBI.   

 
 Members are requested to note that in line with the SEBI circular dated January 25, 2023, issuance of 

shares in case of transmission and requests for duplicate share certificates can only be undertaken in 
dematerialised mode. The securities in the frozen folios shall be eligible: 

 
 

Particulars of Shares No. of Shares % of Total 

Held in dematerialized form in CDSL 8906101 41.07% 

Held in dematerialized form in NSDL 4827879 22.27 %  

Physical 7947791* 36.66 %  

Total 21681771 100.00 
 

 *(Note: Listing/Trading Approval for 7762500 shares are still awaited. Hence these Shares are added under 

Physical shares for Reconciliation of Capital) 

n. Distribution Schedule Of Shareholding as On 31st March, 2024 
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Range (In Rs.) Total 
Shareholders 

% of Total 
Shareholders 

Total Holding in 
Rupees 

% of Total Capital 

1     to    500 8270 81.44 795466 3.6688 

501      -    1000 774 7.62 647490 2.9863 

1001    -    2000 445 4.38 669546 3.0881 

2001    -    3000 175 1.72 447995 2.0662 

3001    -    4000 90 0.89 321526 1.4829 

4001    -    5000 67 0.66 322671 1.4882 

5001   -  10000 132 1.23 1013740 4.6755 

10001  and above 202 1.99 17463337 80.5439 

TOTAL 8375 100 2,16,81,771 100 

 

o. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 
 The nature of business of the Company does not involve any such risks/hedging activities. 

 

p. Performance in comparison to broad-based indices 
 

 
 
 

q. Plant Location: The Company does not have any manufacturing facility. 
 

r. Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account:   
 In accordance with the requirements of Regulation 34 read with Schedule V(F) of Listing Regulations, there 

is no such share which is in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account of the Company 
for the period under review.  
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s. List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the relevant 
financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or 
proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad: Not Applicable.  

 

t. Address for investors correspondence 
 

 For any other general matters or in case of any difficulties/ grievances, correspondence may be addressed 
to Mr. Rajesh Agarwal, the Chief Financial Officer at the Registered Office of the Company or at the 
Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agents at the following addresses situated at:  

 
 

Registered Office of the Company:  

401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp. P. K. Jewellers,  

Dawood Baug Lane, Off J. P. Road,   

Andheri (West), Mumbai – 400 058 

Tel. No.: 022- 26790471  

Email id.: mukta.agriculture@gmail.com 

 

Registrar & Transfer Agents:  

M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. 

Office No. S6-2 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, 

Next to Ahura Centre Mahakali Caves Road, 

Andheri  {E) Mumbai – 400093. 

Board No : 022 – 62638200 | Extn : 206 

Fax No : 022 – 62638299 | M :+7045454392 

Email id.: info@bigshareonline.com 

Website: www.bigshareonline.com 

 

10. OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 

10.1 Related Party Transactions  
 The transactions entered into with the related parties during the financial year were in the ordinary course 

of business and at arm’s length basis and were approved by the Audit Committee. The Company has taken 

omnibus approval for the FY 2023-2024 for the transactions which are repetitive in nature. There were no 

other materially significant transactions with the related parties, during the year, which were in conflict 

with the interests of the Company and that require an approval of the Company in terms of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations.  Transactions with the related parties are disclosed in Notes to the Annual Accounts. 

 Further the details of the transactions have been disclosed in the notes to financial statements.  

 The Company has formulated policy for determining Material Subsidiaries and Policy on dealing with 

Related Party Transactions. The said policies are hosted on the Company’s website http://www.mukta-

agriculture.com/investors.html. 

10.2 No penalties or strictures have been imposed by SEBI, Stock Exchanges or any statutory authorities on 
matters relating to capital markets during the last three years. 
 

10.3 The Company does not have any subsidiary Company. The Company has a Policy for determining 
“Material Subsidiary” which is disclosed on the Company’s website http://mukta-
agriculture.com/pdfs/Policy_on_Material_Subsidiaries.pdf 
 

 

mailto:mukta.agriculture@gmail.com
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html
http://mukta-agriculture.com/pdfs/Policy_on_Material_Subsidiaries.pdf
http://mukta-agriculture.com/pdfs/Policy_on_Material_Subsidiaries.pdf
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10.4 Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy 
 The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy for establishing a vigil mechanism to report genuine concerns 

regarding unethical behavior and mismanagement, if any. No employee of the Company was denied 
access to the Audit Committee. Details relating to vigil mechanism are also mentioned in the Board’s 
Report. The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company at http://www.mukta-
agriculture.com/investors.html. 

 
10.5 Compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory requirements 
 The Company has complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements under various Regulations of 

the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosures Requirements) Regulation, 2015. The Company has obtained a 
Certificate from Statutory auditor of the Company to this effect and the same is annexed in this report as 
well. 

 
 The Company has complied non-mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations as follows: 
 

(i) The Board: the Company doesn’t bear any expenses of the Non-Executive Chairman’s 
Office. 

(ii) Shareholders Rights: The quarterly,half-yearly and annual financial results are published in 
newspapers, uploaded on Company’s website; 

(iii) Modified Opinion(s) in Audit Report: The Auditor’s opinion on theFinancial Statements is 
unmodified; 

(iv) The Separate posts of Chairperson and CEO: The Company does not have permanent 
Chairman on the Board; 

(v) Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor of the Company reports directly to the 
Audit Committee. 

 
10.6 Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: The nature of business of the 

Company does not involve any such risks/hedging activities. 
 

10.7 Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as 
specified under regulation 32(7A) of LODR Regulations.: 
 

 This Regulation is not applicable to the Company as the Company has not raised any funds through 
preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement. 

 
10.8 Certificate under Regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations: 

 The Company has obtained a Certificate pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of Listing 

Regulations from M/s. Komal Khadaria & Co., Practicing Company Secretary certifying that none of the 

Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India or Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs or any such statutory authority. The said certificate has been annexed with this Report as Annexure 

VI. 

10.9 Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which is 
mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed along with reasons 
thereof: Not Applicable 

 
10.10  Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the 

statutory auditorand all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a 
part: Details relating to fees paid to the statutory auditors are given in Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 

10.11 Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013: 

 number of complaints filed during the financial year 2023-24: Nil 

 numberof complaints disposed of during the financial year 2023-24: N.A. 

http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/investors.html
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 numberof complaints pending as on end of the financial year 2023-24: N.A. 
 

11. COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 The Company has complied with the corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 

and clauses (b) to (i) of Sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 
12. CODE OF CONDUCT 

 The Board has laid down the code of conduct for all the Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel of 

theCompany. The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company at http://www.mukta-

agriculture.com/pdfs/code_bm.pdf. All Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed 

compliance with the code ofconduct for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 and a declaration to this 

effect duly signed by Managing Director of the Company is appended to this report as Annexure III.  

13. REVIEW OF COMPLIANCE REPORT BY THE BOARD 
 The Company has in place a proper system to enable the Board to review on a quarterly basis the 

Compliance Report pertaining to all applicable laws to the Company and also to assess the steps taken by 

the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, if any. 

14. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 
 The Company has formulated and adopted an Insider Trading Policy including a Code of Fair Disclosure in 

accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as may be 

amended from time to time. The policy lays down the guidelines, procedures to be followed from time to 

time and disclosures to be made while dealing with the securities of the Company along with consequences 

for violation. The policy is formulated to regulate, monitor and ensure reporting of deals by designated 

persons and maintain highest level of ethical standards while dealing in the Company’s securities. During 

the year, there has been due compliance with the Code by the Company and all Insiders.  

 The Insider Trading Policy including Code of Fair Disclosure is available on the website of the Company at 

http://www.mukta-agriculture.com. The Company is maintaining a Structured Digital Database as required 

under regulation 3(5) of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

15. AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATION ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 The Company has obtained a Certificate from the Auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the 

provisions relating to Corporate Governance prescribed by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation, 2015, which is attached with this report as Annexure V.  

 

By and on behalf of the Board 

For Mukta Agriculture Limited 

            Sd/-                              Sd/- 

                                                Krishan Khadaria                    Mohit Khadaria 

                                                                                                                    Director                                       Managing Director 

             DIN: 00219096                 DIN: 05142395 

Registered Office: 

401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp. P. K. Jewellers,                                                                                        

Dawood Baug Lane, Off J. P. Road,           

Andheri (West), Mumbai – 400 058       

Place: Mumbai Dated: 2nd September, 2024                                                          

  

http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/pdfs/code_bm.pdf
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/pdfs/code_bm.pdf
http://www.mukta-agriculture.com/
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ANNEXURE –I 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

 ECONOMIC OVERVIEW:  
 
 GLOBAL ECONOMY 
 
 In 2023, the global economy grew by 3.2%, exhibiting resilient growth with signs of an improved global 

outlook. The impact of tighter monetary conditions continues, especially in housing and credit markets, but 
global activity is proving relatively resilient, inflation is falling faster than initially projected, and private sector 
confidence is improving. Real incomes have begun to rise as inflation has slowed and trade growth has 
become positive. The concerted efforts of central banks across the globe to tame inflationary pressures, along 
with a broad base increase in labour force participation and the gradual expansion of global supplies, aided 
deceleration in inflation. Developments continue to differ among countries, with lacklustre outcomes in many 
advanced economies, particularly in Europe, counterbalanced by strong growth in the United States and many 
emerging markets. As per the IMF, global growth in 2024 and 2025 is estimated to remain persistent at 3.2%, 
supported by robust government and private spending in several economies. A faster pace of disinflation and 
steady growth could lead to easing out of tight financial policies. Growth in advanced economies is expected 
to accelerate slightly to 1.7% and 1.8% in 2024 and 2025, respectively, from 1.6% in 2023. Economic growth in 
EDMEs is expected to be at similar levels of 4.3% in 2023 and 4.2% in both 2024 and 2025. In the near term, it 
is imperative for the central banks to manage monetary policy to ensure continued deceleration in inflation 
and rebuild budgetary capacity to deal with future shocks. Calibrated structural reforms remain the key to 
reinforcing enhanced productivity and debt sustainability and accelerating convergence towards higher 
income levels. Multilateral coordination has become more crucial for debt resolution, the mitigation of the 
effects of climate change, and facilitating the green energy transition in accordance with the 2023 Conference 
of the Parties to the UN Framework Convention on Climate Change (COP28). 

 
 INDIAN ECONOMY  
 
 Agriculture and allied sectors continue to remain one of the most important sectors of the Indian economy 

and is the main source of livelihood for ~55% of India’s population. India has the world’s largest cattle herd, 
the largest area planted for wheat, rice, and cotton, and is the largest producer of milk, pulses, and spices in 
the world. It is the second-largest producer of fruit, vegetables, tea, farmed fish, cotton, sugarcane, wheat, 
rice, cotton, and sugar. The agriculture sector in India holds the record for second-largest agricultural land in 
the world generating employment for about half of the country’s population. Thus, farmers become an 
integral part of the sector to provide us with a means of sustenance. 

 
 The agriculture and allied sectors have remained resilient throughout the pandemic and geopolitical conflicts 

and is estimated to have grown by 0.7% in Financial Year 2023-24, as per Second Advance Estimates by 
Central Statistical Office (CSO). Foodgrains production declined in kharif season due to deficient and unevenly 
distributed rainfall (both spatially and temporally) along with depleting reservoir levels. As of March 28, 2024 
reservoir levels were at 36 per cent of the full capacity, below the last year’s level of 43 percent. Foodgrains 
production for 2023-24 is estimated at 3,093.5 lakh tonnes, 1.3 per cent lower than the final estimates of last 
year (as per Second Advance Estimates). Among major crops, the output of rice declined while that of wheat 
rose. Pulses production dropped with a sharp decline recorded during the kharif season. Among commercial 
crops, the output of oilseeds, cotton and sugarcane registered a sharp decline vis-à-vis last year. As per the 
First Advance Estimates (FAE), the production of horticultural crops during 2023-24 was placed at 355.3 
million tonnes, marginally lower than the final estimates of 2022-23 and 1.2 per cent higher than the FAE of 
2022-23 The high frequency indicators exhibit a mixed picture of rural activity as two-wheeler sales, 
agriculture credit and MNREGA demand indicate buoyancy while tractor sales and fertiliser sales suggest 
some softness in activity during H2. Prospects of rural activity, however, appear bright due to better 
prospects of agricultural output amidst the IMD’s forecast of an above normal south-west monsoon in 2024 
and accelerated pick up in informal sector activity.  
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 OVERVIEW  
 We, Mukta Agriculture Limited, is engaged in the business of trading in agricultural goods, natural resources 

and deals in agro & allied products. Due to financial crisis the company is not in profits but we are in the 
process of diversifying and expanding its existing business activities into newer areas to attain profits during 
the years which shall be beneficial for the growth of the Company and its members.   

 
 INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

The interim budget for FY24-25 has promised stepping up of value addition in agricultural sector and 

boosting farmer’s income and has made substantial budgetary allocations as below Interim Budget 

Financial Year 24-25 – Highlights for the agriculture sector: 

 

  The allocation for the Agriculture ministry has been set at `1.27 lakh crore exhibiting an increase from 

revised estimates of `1.16 lakh crore in FY 23-24 

  Outlay for agriculture and allied activities enhanced to `1.47 trillion in FY2025 Budget Estimates (BE) 

from `1.41 trillion in 2023-24 Revised Estimates  

 Allocation towards modified interest subvention scheme increased to `226 billion for FY2025 BE from 

`185 billion for FY2024  

 Allocation for Rashtriya Krishi Vikas Yojna increased to `75.5 billion for FY2025 BE from `61 billion for 

FY2024  

 Allocation of `600 billion for FY2025 BE towards the Pradhan Mantri Kisan Samman Nidhi Yojna 

remains at similar levels as FY2024  

 Promotion of private and public investment in post-harvest activities, including aggregation, modern 

storage, efficient supply chains, primary and secondary processing, as well as marketing and branding. 

 
OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS 

 
 Increase market share in existing business verticals: Several sectors in which your Company operates are 

largely unorganized, therefore, cost leadership is a key enabler for your Company to increase the market 
share of its products in those segments. The Company’s ability to increase sales will be strengthened by 
continued focus on offering a wide range of innovative products across all business verticals which will help 
in gaining market share. Additionally, in the medium-term, due to supply chain disruption and lack of 
liquidity leading to the closure of smaller business units, larger players with strong balance sheets will gain 
market share 

 
 Diversified businesses with synergies in operations: Segmental and geographical diversification across 

business verticals provide a hedge against the risks associated with any particular industry segment or 
geography while benefiting from the synergies of operating in diverse but related businesses. Synergies 
across diverse businesses provide the ability to drive growth, optimize capital efficiency and maintain 
competitive advantage. The Company also derives operational efficiencies by centralizing and sharing 
certain key functions across businesses such as finance, legal, information technology, strategy, 
procurement and human resources. 

 
 Focus on inorganically growing business offerings: Your Company will evaluate inorganic growth 

opportunities, in keeping with the strategy to grow and develop market share or to add new product 
categories. Your Company may consider opportunities for inorganic growth, such as through mergers and 
acquisitions, if, amongst other things, they consolidate market position in existing business verticals or 
achieve operating leverage in key markets by unlocking potential efficiency and synergy benefits. Your 
Company can also look at opportunities that will strengthen and expand its product portfolio and increase 
its sales and distribution network. 
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 RISKS & CONCERNS 
 Risk and uncertainty are inherent to agriculture. These include climate and weather risks, natural 

catastrophes pest and diseases, which cause highly variable production outcomes. The most common sources 
of risk are weather, climate, diseases, natural disasters market and environmental shocks. The Company is 
committed to the identification, measurement and management of business risk by evaluating new 
Technologies & Controlling Productions. 

  
 OUTLOOK 
 The outlook for India's agriculture sector in 2024 is positive, with a projected growth in the gross production 

value, import value, and export value. Here's some more information about the outlook for the agriculture 

sector in India in 2024:  

  

 Gross production value 

The gross production value of the agriculture sector is projected to be $515 billion in 2024.  

  

 Import value 

The import value of the agriculture sector is projected to be $9,095 million in 2024.  

  

 Export value 

The export value of the agriculture sector is projected to be $11,580 million in 2024.  

  

 Market size 

The agriculture market in India is estimated to be worth $372.94 billion in 2024.  

  

 Growth rate 

The agriculture sector is expected to grow at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 3.06% from 2024 to 

2029.  

  

 Livelihoods 

The agriculture sector is the primary source of livelihood for about 58% of India's population.  

  

 Growth engine 

The Economic Survey 2024 highlights the potential of the agriculture sector to be a growth engine for     

India.  

 SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE 
 The Company is operating on only one segment. Hence separate segmental reporting is not applicable. The 

Company has no activity outside India. 
 

 INTERNAL CONTROLS SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY 
 Your Company remains committed to improve the effectiveness of internal control systems for business 

processes with regard to its operations, financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. The Company has a propersystem of internal controls to ensure that all assets are safeguarded 
and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that all transactions are authorized, 
recorded and reported correctly. 

 
 Moreover, the Company has appointed Internal Auditors to oversee and carry out internal audit of its 

activities. The audit is based on an internal audit plan, which is reviewed each year in consultation with the 
statutory auditors and approved by the audit committee. 
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 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  
 The financial performance is covered in the Director’s Report and the same can be referred to by the 

shareholders. 
 
 MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT 
 
 The  growth  achieved  in  Indian  agricultural  sector  has been attributed to the consorted efforts of available 

skilled human resource. 

 National Institute of Agricultural Extension Management (MANAGE) is providing training support to senior 
and middle level functionaries of the State Governments.  

 Four Extension Education Institutes namely, Nilokheri (Haryana), Hyderabad (Telangana), Anand (Gujarat) 
and Jorhat/Guwahati(Assam) are functioning at the Regional Level. The objectives of EEIs are to improve 
the skills and professional competence of middle level extension field functionaries of agriculture.   

 Diploma in Agricultural Extension Services for Input Dealers (DAESI) is of one year (expanded to 48 weeks) 
regular course launched in October, 2015 with an objective to impart education in agriculture and other 
allied areas to the Input Dealers. 

 Th e National Gender Resource Centre in Agriculture (NGRCA) of the Department of Agriculture & Farmers 
Welfare established in Extension Division is supp orted under the component of 'Extension Support to 
Central Institutes/ Directorate of Extension' of 'SubMission on AgriculturalExtension.  

 
 RATIOS WHERE THERE HAS BEEN A SIGNIFICANT CHANGE FROM FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23 TO FINANCIAL 

YEAR 2023-24 
 

 During the year under review, the detail of changes made in the following key financial ratios as compare to 
the immediately previous financial year. The details of the same in a form of comparison is provided as:-  

 

S. No. Particulars of Ratio Financial Year 

2023-24 

Financial Year 

2022-23 

1 Debtors Turnover Ratio NA NA 

2 Inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA 

3 Interest Coverage Ratio NA NA 

4 Current Ratio 135.15 759.86 

5 Debt Equity Ratio 0.05 0.05 

6 Operating Profit Margin NA NA 

7 Net Profit Margin (4.34) (1.01) 

8 Return on Net worth (0.09) (0.34) 

 
 
DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT   

 The Company has followed accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 

Standard (Ind AS) as specified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant 

provision of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the Accounting Polices during the period presented. 

Kindly refer notes to the financial statements for significant accounting policies adopted by the Company. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 
 

 Statements in foregoing paragraphs of this report describing the current industry structure, outlook, 

opportunities, etc., may be construed as “forward looking statements”, based on certain assumptions of 

future events over which the Company exercises no control. Therefore, there can be no guarantee as to their 

accuracy. These statements involve a number of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual 



MUKTA AGRICULTURE LIMITED                                  ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 

 
 

 

 

56 
                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

 

results to differ materially from those that may be implied by these forward looking statements. Such risks 

and uncertainties include, but are not limited to: growth, competition, domestic & international economic 

conditions affecting demand, supply & price conditions, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes and 

other statutes. 

 
 

By and on behalf of the Board 
For Mukta Agriculture Limited 

 
 

                                                                  Sd/-                                                       Sd/-                       
                                                             Krishan Khadaria                            Mohit Khadaria 
                                                             Director                                      Managing Director 
                                                             DIN: 00219096                                DIN: 05142395 

 
 
Registered Office: 
401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp. P. K. Jewellers, 
DawoodBaug Lane, Off J. P. Road, 
Andheri (West), Mumbai – 400 058 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Dated: 2nd September, 2024 
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ANNEXURE II 

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH 2024 
 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members 
MUKTA AGRICULTURE LIMITED 
401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp. P. K. Jewellers  
Dawood Baug Lane, Off. J. P. Road, Andheri (W),  
Mumbai-400058 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Mukta Agriculture Limited, (hereinafter called the “Company”). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in the manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representative during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion 
the Company has during the period covering April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024, complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of: 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made there under; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”), to the extent they are applicable to the company: 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018;  
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity 
shares) Regulations, 2021: (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period) 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021: (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period) 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 and: (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit period); and 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018: (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit period) 
 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
(i) Secretarial Standards Issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
(ii) SEBI (LODR), regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time 
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except as mentioned below: 
 
The Company passed an Ordinary Resolution instead of Special Resolution for appointment of Mr. 
Manaklal Agarwal as an Independent Director of the Company as prescribed under Regulation 25 (2A) of 
SEBI (LODR), regulations 2015. 
 
The Company has filed the Form AOC-XBRL for the F.Y 2022-23 by paying additional fees of Rs. 1400/-, 
under section 137 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
 
I further report that 
 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act except the one stated above. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 
 
I further report that during the audit period, the company has not undertaken any action having a major 
bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws. 
 
For Ritika Agrawal & Associates 
 
 
 
Ritika Agrawal 
Proprietor 
M. No. 8949 
COP No. 8266        Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: F008949F001103130      Date: 02/09/2024 
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ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

To, 

The Members 

MUKTA AGRICULTURE LIMITED 

401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp. P. K. Jewellers 

Dawood Baug Lane, Off. J. P. Road, Andheri 

(W), Mumbai-400058 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done 

on the random test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe 

that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 

of the Company. 

4) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on random test basis. 

6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 
 

 

For Ritika Agrawal & Associates 

 

Sd/- 

Ritika Agrawal 

Proprietor 

M. No. 8949 

COP No. 8266 Place: Mumbai 

UDIN: F008949F001103130 Date: 02/09/2024 
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ANNEXURE -III 
 

DECLARATION ON ADHERENCE TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

 

 In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, I hereby 
confirm and declare that, all the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel of  the Company 
have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for Directors & Senior Management Personnel of the 
Company laid down for them for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 
 
By and on behalf of the Board 
For Mukta Agriculture Limited 

 
 
 Sd/- 

Mohit Khadaria                                                                            

Managing Director 

DIN: 05142396 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 23rd May, 2024 
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ANNEXURE -IV 
 
CEO/MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CFO CERTIFICATION 
 

To, 
The Board of Directors, 
Mukta Agriculture Limited 
 

Subject: Managing Director and CFO Certification under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015  
financial year ended 31st March, 2024 

 
We, Mr. Mohit Khadaria, Managing Director and Mr. Rakesh Sahewal, Chief Financial Officer of Mukta 
Agriculture Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, hereby certify that: 
 

1. We have reviewed the audited Financial Statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the 
best of our knowledge and belief:  

1.1 These Statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

1.2 These Statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity's affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
2. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2024, which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of 
the Company's Code of Conduct. 

 
3. We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the 

effectiveness of the same over the financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and 
the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 
and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
4. We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit 

Committee: 
 

4.1 significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year ended 31st March, 
2024; 

 
4.2 significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and that the 

same has been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
 
4.3 instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting. 

 
 

                   Sd/-          Sd/- 
  MOHIT KHADARIA              RAKESH SAHEWAL               

           MANAGING DIRECTOR         CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
                               DIN: 05142395                                                   PAN: AAVPS2744N 

 
Date: 23rd May, 2024 

    Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE V 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

To 

The Members, 

MUKTA AGRICULTURE LIMITED 
 

1. We have examined the compliance conditions of corporate governance by MUKTA AGRICULTURE LIMITED 

(‘the Company’) for the year ended 31st March 2024, as specified in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) 

and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and paragraph C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’).  

 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY 

 

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the listing regulations is the 

responsibility of the Company’s Management including the preparation and maintenance of all the relevant 

records and documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of 

internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance 

stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

 

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 

 

3. Our examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 

Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit 

nor an expression of opinion on financial statements of the Company. 

 
4. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable 

assurance whether the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 

Listing Regulations for the year ended 31st March 2024. 

 
5. We conducted our examination of the above corporate governance compliance by the Company in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) and 

Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance both issued by the Institute of the Chartered 

Accountants of India (the ‘ICAI’), in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate. The Guidance Note 

requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

 

OPINION 

 

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given by the Company 

and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that subject to the 

observations mentioned in the Secretarial Audit Report, the Company has complied with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance as stipulated in above mentioned Listing Regulations during the period ended 31st 

March, 2024. 

 

7. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

RESTRICTION ON USE 
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8. The certificate is addressed and provided to the Members of the Company solely for the purpose of 

enabling the Company to comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulations and should not be used by 

any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty 

of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands 

it may come without our prior consent in writing. 

 

 

For Sunil Vankawala & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

  Firm Registration No: 110616W 
 
 
         Sd/- 
Place: Mumbai                                                           (Sunil T. Vankawala)                   
Dated: 02.09.2024                                       Proprietor  

                                                              Membership No. 033461 
                 UDIN:- 24033461BKCJRH7631 
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ANNEXURE –VI 
 

CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 34(3) OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 
 
To,  
The Members of  
Mukta Agriculture Limited 
401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp P.K Jewellers, 
Dawood Baug Lane, Off. J. P. Road, 
Andheri (W), Mumbai 400058 
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors 
of Mukta Agriculture  Limited having CIN L01403MH2011PLC221387 and having registered office at 401/A, 
Pearl Arcade, Opp P.K Jewellers, Dawood Baug Lane, Off. J. P. Road, Andheri (W), Mumbai 400058 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing 
this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.   
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of 
the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 

S. No. Name of Director  DIN  Original Date of appointment 
in Company  

1. Krishan Raghunath Prasad Khadaria 00219096 30/08/2011 

2. Manaklal Agarwal 10214780  31/07/2023 

3. Mohit Krishan Khadaria 05142395 14/12/2017 

4. Niraali Santosh Thingalaya 08125213 30/05/2018 

 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 
 
 
For Ritika Agrawal & Associates 
 

Sd/- 
Ritika Agrawal  
Proprietor 
M. No. 8949 
COP No. 8266 Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: F008949F001104516 Date: 02/09/202 

  

http://www.mca.gov.in/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To The Members M/S. MUKTA AGRICULTURE LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S. MUKTA AGRICULTURE LIMITED (“the Company”), 
which comprises the Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 

and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2024, its Loss, (including statement of other 

comprehensive Income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

  
 Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act 

(SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the 

financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

      
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  
 

 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the company’s Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. 

 

 The Other Information to the extent not made available to us as of the date of the signing of this report is expected to 
be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s Report.  

 

 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

 

 When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with Governance. 

 
Managements and Board of Director’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 

 
The C o m p a n y ’ s  M a n a g e m e n t  a n d  Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) 
of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position,  financial performance including other comprehensive income, Cash Flows and changes in equity of the Company 
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in accordance with the Indian Accounting  Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under  Section  133  of the  Act,  read with  
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India.  
 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the  Company and  for  preventing and  detecting frauds  and  other irregularities;  
selection  and application  of appropriate  accounting  policies; making judgments  and estimates that  are reasonable 
and  prudent;  design,  implementation and  maintenance  of adequate  internal  financial controls, that are operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the  financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Audit 
(‘SA’s) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, specified under section 143(10) of the act, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control; 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls; 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management; 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation; 
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 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the company to express an opinion 
on the financial statements. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationship and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore, the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 
of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements. 

 
b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears 

from our examination of those books. 

 
c)  The Balance Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow 

Statement, and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

 
d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with applicable Ind AS specified under Section 133 of 

the Act. 

 
e)   On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, taken on record by 

the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
f)   With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over the financial reporting of the Company, and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls 
over financial reporting. 

 
3. With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial position in the Ind AS Financial 

statements –refer to Note no 24 to for the financial position. 
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as such the question of 
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commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise. 
 

iii. There were no amounts that were required to be transferred to the investor and Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

 
iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 

either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including 
foreign entity (“Intermediary”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including 
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries.  

 

C) Based on the audit Procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to the notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) 
of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.            

 
v. The company has not proposed, declared and paid any dividend during the year; accordingly reporting under Rule 

11(f) is not applicable to the company. 

 
vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software for 

maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has 
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of 
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. [Since proviso to Rule 
3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for 
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

 
 
For Sunil Vankawala & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 110616W 
 
 
 
 Place: Mumbai                                                                                                  (Sunil T. Vankawala) 
 Dated: 23.05.2024                                                    Proprietor  

                                                                     Membership No. 033461 
        UDIN:- 24033461BKCJPN3309 
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our Report of 
even date) 

 
(i) 
(a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us company does not own any 

property, plant and equipment, hence clause (i) (a) (A) of the Paragraph is not applicable to the company. 
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us company does not own any 

property, plant, and equipment, hence there is no question for physical verification hence, clause (i) (b) of the 
Paragraph is not applicable to the company. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us, the Company does not own any 
immovable property, hence clause (i) (c) of Paragraph is not applicable to the company.  

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and 
equipment and its intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the requirement under paragraph 3(i) (d) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, no proceeding has been initiated or are 

pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988) and rules made thereunder.  

(ii) 
(a) A. According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us company does not own any 
Inventories hence clause (ii) of the Paragraph is not applicable to the company. 

 

(b) Since the Company does not have a working capital limit sanctioned by the banks in excess of Rs 5 crore based on the 
security of current assets. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph ii (b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.  

(iii) 

(a)During the year the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, provided guarantee and security to 
companies as follows:  

                             (Rs. In thousand) 

Particulars Opening Balance During the Year Closing Balance 

Nouveau Global Ventures Limited -5870 NIL NIL 

 
(b) During the year the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans to companies are not 
prejudicial to the Company's interest.  
 
(c) The Company has not granted loans during the year to companies where the schedule of repayment of principal and 
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular. 
(d) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies that are overdue for more than 90 days. 
 
(e) There were no loans that had fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to 
settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties. 
 
(f) According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has granted a loan or advance in the nature of 
loan, on demand of repayment to company as follows:  

 
 



MUKTA AGRICULTURE LIMITED                                  ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 

 
 

 

 

70 
                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

 

             (Amount. In lacs) 

Particulars Opening Balance During the Year Closing Balance 

Nouveau Global Ventures Limited -5870 NIL NIL 

 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not either directly or 
indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the director is interested, in accordance 
with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the Company has not made investments through more than two layers of 
investment companies in accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in 
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as deemed deposit 
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 
Accordingly, a provision stated in clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi)The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act, 
in respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

 (vii) 
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, in respect of undisputed statutory dues including, Provident fund, Employees' state insurance, Income tax, Sales 
tax, Goods and Services Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Value Added Tax, Cess and Other material statutory dues have 
been generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, 
the Company did not have any dues on account of Excise duty. 
 
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which 
have not been deposited with the appropriate authority on account of any dispute, except as mentioned below:  
 

Sr. 
No 

Nature of 
Liability 

Name of the 
Statute 

Period to which the 
amount relates 

Amount (Rs. In 
Thousand) 

Forum Where the 
dispute pending 

1. Income Tax Income Tax Act 
1961 

A.Y. 2013-14 1,172.32 CIT(Appeal),17 

 
(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the 
books of account. 

(ix)  

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the 
Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised any term 
loans during the year for the purposes for which these were obtained, Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph clause ix 
(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term basis have not been utilized for long term 
purposes.  
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(e) According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the 
Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its associates. The Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint ventures.  

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company 
has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or Associates 
Company.  

(x)  

(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partly or 
optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.  

(xi)  

(a) During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud 
by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.  

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the period covered by our 
audit. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph (xi) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the 
course of audit. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph (xi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to Company.  

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, the provisions 
stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  

(xiii) In our opinion and on the basis of management representation, all transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with the provisions of section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have 
been disclosed in financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.  

(xiv)  

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system which is commensurate with 
the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered internal audit reports issued by the internal auditor of the Company till date for the period under 
audit. 

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or person connected with him. 
Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.  Accordingly, 
the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial 
year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
  
(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 
clause 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
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statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty 
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not 
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to 
the Company. Hence, the provisions of paragraph (xx) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xxi) Since the Accounts prepared are on standalone basis and it does not include any amalgamated Accounts, the reporting 
under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment 
has been included in respect of said clause under this report. 

   
  
For Sunil Vankawala & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 110616W 
 
 
 
 Place: Mumbai                                                                        (Sunil T. Vankawala)                   
 Dated: 23.5.2024                                              Proprietor  

                                                              Membership No. 033461 
                 UDIN:- 24033461BKCJPN3309 
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

(Referred to in (f) of Paragraph 2 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our 
Report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Act 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of M/S MUKTA AGRICULTURE 
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk.  

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion  

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on, the criteria for internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

 For Sunil Vankawala & Associates 
          Chartered Accountants 
  Firm Registration No: 110616W 
 
 
 Place: Mumbai                                                                       (Sunil T. Vankawala)                   
 Dated: 23.05.2024                                                            Proprietor  
                                                                                               Membership No. 033461 

                                                                                                UDIN: - 24033461BKCJPN3309 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024 

 
Particulars 

Note 
 

As at 
31.03.2024 

Amt. (Rs.’in Lacs) 
As at 

31.03.2023 

ASSETS 
   Non-current Assets 
   Financial Assests 
   Investments 2 2,073.546 2,238.795 

Loans 3 2.675 3.015 

Other Financial Assets 4 - - 

Total Non-current Assets 
 

2,076.221 2,241.810 

    Current Assets 
   Trade Receivable 5 - - 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 3.831 2.917 

Other Financial Assets 7 29.691 30.020 

Other Current Assets 8 232.000 233.850 

Total Current Assets 
 

265.522 266.786 

    TOTAL ASSETS 
 

2,341.742 2,508.596 

    EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
   Equity 
   Equity Share capital 9 2,168.177 2,168.177 

Other equity 10 50.810 219.277 

Total Equity 
 

2,218.987 2,387.455 

    Non-current Liabilities 
   Financial Liabilities 
   Long-term Borrowings 11 107.991 107.991 

Other Non-Current Liabilities 12 12.800 12.800 

Total - Non-current Liabilities 
 

120.791 120.791 

    Current Liabilities 
   Financial Liabilities 
   Short-term Borrowings 13 - - 

Trade Payables 14 
  (A) Total outstanding dues to 

micro entreprises and small enterprises; 
 

0.250 0.250 
(B) Total Outstanding dues to 

other than micro entreprises and small 
enterprises. 

 
1.705 0.091 

Other Financial Liabilities 15 0.010 0.010 

Total Current Liabilities 
 

1.965 0.351 

    TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 

2,341.742 2,508.596 

    Contingent liabilities and commitments 24 
  (To the extent not provided for) 

   
    Basis of preparation, measurement and 

significant accounting policies 
1 
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The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements 

 
    As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors 

For Sunil Vankawala & Associates Mukta Agriculture Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
   Firm Regn. No: 110616W 

    

   

    Sunil T. Vankawala 
 

Mohit Khadaria Krishan Khadaria 

Proprietor 
 

Managing Director Director 

M.No. 033461 
 

DIN : 05142395 DIN : 00219096 

UDIN : 24033461BKCJPN3309 
   

    Place : Mumbai 
 

Aashish Garg Rakesh Sahewal 

Dated :  23rd May, 2024 
 

Company  Secretary CFO 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR PERIOD ENDING 31ST MARCH,2024 

 
 

 Amt. (Rs.'in Lacs) 

  
Year Ended Year Ended 

Particulars Note 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

    
Revenue 

   Revenue from Operations 16 NIL NIL 

Other Income 17 39.897 797.771 

Total Revenue 
 

39.897 797.771 

    Expenses 
   Employee Benefits Expenses 18 22.116 21.343 

Finance  Cost 19 0.025 0.000 

Other Expenses 20 10.987 14.332 

Total Expenses 
 

33.128 35.675 

    Profit / (Loss) Before Exceptional Items 

 
6.769 762.096 

Less : 

   Exceptional Items 

 
199.216 1,571.053 

 
   Profit / (Loss) after Exceptional Items & befor Tax 

 
(192.447) (808.957) 

 
   Tax Expense: 
   - Current Tax 
 

NIL NIL 

- Short / Excess Provisions for earlier years 
 

0.811 NIL 

- Deferred Tax 
 

NIL NIL 

Profit / (Loss) For The Year (A) 
 

(193.258) (808.957) 

    OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
   

    

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 
   Net fair value gain/(loss) on investments in equity instruments 

through OCI 

 

24.791 (68.106) 

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss 

 
0.000 0.000 

Income tax on Net fair value gain/(loss) on investments in equity 
instruments through OCI 

 
0.000 0.000 

    OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (B) 
 

24.791 (68.106) 

    TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (A) + (B) 

 

(168.468) (877.063) 

    Earnings Per Share 23 
  Basic and Diluted (Rs.) 

   Basic 
 

(0.891) (3.731) 

Diluted 
 

(0.891) (3.731) 

    Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting 
policies 

1 
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial 
Statements. 

   

    As per our report of even date 
   

 
For and on behalf of the board of directors 

For Sunil Vankawala & Associates Mukta Agriculture Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
   Firm Regn. No: 110616W 

   

    

    Sunil T. Vankawala 
 

Mohit Khadaria Krishan Khadaria 

Proprietor 
 

Managing Director Director 

M.No. 033461 
 

DIN : 05142395 DIN : 00219096 

UDIN : 24033461BKCJPN3309 
   

    

    Place : Mumbai 
 

Aashish Garg Rakesh Sahewal 

Dated :  23rd May, 2024 
 

Company  Secretary CFO 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

   

Amt. (Rs.'in Lacs) 

Sr. No. Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities: 
  

    

 
Net profit before tax & extra ordinary items (168.468) (877.063) 

 
Adjustment for: 

  

 
- Depreciation and amortisation of Fixed Assets - - 

 
- Re-Measurement gain/(loss)of fair value of Equity Instrument (24.791) 68.106 

 
- Investments W/off 199.216 - 

 
- Share of Loss from Partnership Firm 19.536 27.966 

 
- Profit/Loss on Sale of Investment - 39.373 

 
- Deffered Tax - - 

 
- Interest Received (58.962) (30.306) 

 
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (33.468) (771.925) 

    

 
Changes in Operating  Assets and Liabilities 

  

 
(Increase) /Decrease  in Loans & Advances 0.340 1.602 

 
(Increase) /Decrease  in Other Financial Assets 0.329 744.644 

 
(Increase) /Decrease  in Other Current Assets 1.850 48.250 

 
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables - - 

 
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories - - 

 
Increase/ (Decrease) in Borrowings - (4.350) 

 
Increase / (Decrease) in Non Current Liabilities - 0.000 

 
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities 1.614 (1.818) 

  
4.132 788.328 

 
Cash Generated from Operations (29.336) 16.404 

 
Net Cash from Operating activities (29.336) 16.404 

    B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities: 
  

 
(Acquisition)/Sale of PPE and Intangible Assests - - 

 
(Acquisition)/Sale of Investments - (5.640) 

 
- Changes in Partnership Capital Account (9.176) (13.377) 

 
- Interest Received 58.962 30.306 

 
- Share of Loss from Partnership Firm (19.536) (27.966) 

 
Net Cash from Investing activities 30.250 (16.678) 

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities: 
  

 
Net Cash from Financing activities - - 

 
Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.914 (0.274) 

 
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Opening) 2.917 3.190 

 
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Closing) 3.831 2.917 
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Note : 
  1. Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year consist of Cash in Hand and Balances with Banks and are net of 

Short Term Loans and Advances from banks as follows : 

    

 
Particulars As at As at 

  
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

 
Cash in Hand 2.251 2.072 

 
Balances with Banks 1.580 0.845 

 
Total 3.831 2.917 

    
    2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, rearranged wherever necessary in order to conform to current year's 

presentation. 

 

   As per our report of even date attached 
  

    For Sunil  Vankawala & Associates For and on behalf of the board of directors 

Chartered Accountants Mukta Agriculture Limited 

    

    Sunil Vankawala Mohit Khadaria Krishan Khadaria 

Partner Managing Director Director 

Mem No. 033461 DIN : 05142395 DIN : 00219096 

UDIN : 24033461BKCJPN3309 
  

    Place : Mumbai Aashish Garg Rakesh Sahewal 

Dated :  23rd May, 2024 Company  Secretary CFO 
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NOTES ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS ON AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
ON MARCH 31, 2024 

 
Note 1 : Basis of accounting and preparation of Financial Statements 
 

a) Company Overview 
 Mukta Agriculture Limited (“the Company”) is engaged primarily in the business of trading in Agriculture 

products and other related activities. The Company is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in 
India having its registered office at 401/A, Pearl Arcade, Opp. P. K. Jewellers, Dawood Baugh Lane, Off. J. P. 
Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400 058. The Company is listed on BSE Limited (BSE). 

 
b) Basis of Accounting 
 The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) to comply with the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”), and the 
relevant provisions, rules and amendments, as applicable. The Financial Statements have been prepared on 
accrual basis under the historical cost convention except certain assets measured at fair value. 

 
c) Functional and Presentation Currency 
 These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company. All 

financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest rupees as per the 
requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated. 

 
d) Use of Estimates and Judgements 
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and 
the reported revenue and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in 
preparation of the Financial Statements are prudent and reasonable. Significant estimates used by the 
management in the preparation of these financial statements include project revenue, project cost, saleable 
area, economic useful lives of fixed assets, accrual of allowance for bad and doubtful receivables, loans and 
advances and current and deferred taxes. Differences between the actual results and the estimates are 
recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise. 

 
e) Property, Plant and Equipment & Depreciation 
 

i. Recognition and measurement 
 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: 
 
- its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade 

discounts and rebates. 
 
- any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

 
Property, plant and equipment are derecognised from financial statement, either on disposal or when no 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from disposal of property, 
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 
Property, plant and equipment recognised in the statement of profit and loss account in the year of 
occurrence. 

 
ii. Subsequent expenditure 
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to profit or loss during the reporting year in which they are incurred. 

iii. Depreciation 
Depreciation is being provided on written down value method on the basis of systematic allocation of the 
depreciable amount of the assets over its useful life as stated in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Depreciation on assets sold, discarded or scrapped, is provided up to the date on which the said asset is 
sold, discarded or scrapped. 
In respect of an asset for which impairment loss is recognized, depreciation is provided on the revised 
carrying amount of the assets. 

 
f) Intangible Assets –Recognition and measurement 
 

Items of Intangible Assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. 
The cost of intangible assets comprises: 
 
- its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts 

and rebates; and 
 
- any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management. 
  
i. Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with 
the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

ii. Amortisation 
Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on Straight Line Method. 

 
g) Impairment of Assets 
 Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for 

impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. 
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs 
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels 
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from 
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are 
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

 
h) Investments  
 Long term investments are stated at cost. However, provision for diminution is made to recognise any decline, 

other than temporary, in the value of long term investments. 
 Current investments are stated at the fair value. 
 
i) Measurement at fair values 
 The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.  
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

 - In the principal market for the asset or liability or 
 - In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.  
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 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole: 

 Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
 Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

is directly or indirectly observable 
 Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

is unobservable 
 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets & liabilities on the basis 

of the nature, characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 

 The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period 
during which the change has occurred. 

 
j) Financial Instrument  
 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 

equity instrument of another entity. 
 Financial assets include Trade receivable, loan to body corporate, loan to employees, security deposits, 

Investments and other eligible current and non-current assets. 
 Financial liabilities include Loans, trade payable and eligible current and non-current liabilities. 
 Offsetting financial instruments - Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in 

the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally 
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty. 

 
k) Inventories 

i. The cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable 
value, whichever is lower on the basis of first in first out method or specific identification, as the case may be.  
ii. Finished stock are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value on the basis of actual identified units. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

 
l) Revenue Recognition 
 In respect of Sales 
 Sales are recognised when goods are supplied and significant risk and reward of the ownership in the goods are 

transferred to the buyer as per the terms of contract and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount 
of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods. Sales are inclusive of duty and net of 
returns, trade discounts, rebates and GST.  

 
 In respect of interest income  
 Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis at interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate 

that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the 
gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates 
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, 
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 

 In respect of Dividend income 
 Dividend income including share of profit in LLP is recognized when the right to receive the payment is 

established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, 
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.  
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m) Taxation 
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based 
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. 
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company operate and generate taxable income. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable 
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax 
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not 
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business 
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). 
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted 
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is 
realised, or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and 
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a 
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
n) Employee Benefits 
 

i. Short term employee benefits 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in 
respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit 
obligations in the balance sheet. 

ii. Post-employment benefits 
Long-term employee benefits The Company’s  net obligation in respect  of long term  employee benefit is the 
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return of their service in the current and prior periods. 
The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re- measurement are recognized in Statement of 
Profit & Loss in the period in which they arise. 

 
o) Cash and Cash equivalent 
 For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 

hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
p) Earnings per share 
 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding during the year.  
 Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest 

and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity 
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and 
the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. 
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q) Provisions and Contingent liabilities 
 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is 

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are discounted to their present value and are 
determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

 Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent liabilities are disclosed for 
i. possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the 

Company or 
ii. present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Financial Statements. 

 
r) Segment Reporting 
 The company is primarily in the business of trading in Agriculture Products and related activities. Further most 

of the business conducted is within the geographical boundaries of India. 
 In view of the above, in the opinion of the management and based on the organizational and internal reporting 

structure, the company’s business activities as described above are subject to similar risks and returns. Further, 
since the business activities undertaken by the company are substantiating within India, in the opinion of the 
management, the business environment in India is considered to have similar risks and returns. Consequently, 
the company’s business activities primarily represent a single business segment and the company’s operations 
in India represent a single geographical segment. 

 
s) Borrowings 
 Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the 
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until 
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will 
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of 
the facility to which it relates.  

 
 Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 

cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been 
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses). 

 
 Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to 

extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is 
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the 
equity instruments issued. 

 
 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 

the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of 
a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability 
becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the 
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to 
demand payment as a consequence of the breach. 

 
t) Trade and Other Payables 
 These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial 

year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 15 days of recognition. Trade 
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the 
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method.  
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u) Trade Receivables 
 Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method, less provision for impairment / doubtful debts.  
  
v) Government Grants 
 Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the 

grant will be received, and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.  
 
 Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period 

necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other 
income. 

 
 Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current 

liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of 
the related assets and presented within other income. 

 
w) Dividends  
 Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the 

discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the 
reporting period. 

 
x) Business Combinations 
 Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the 

pooling of interest’s method. 
 The consideration for the business combination may consist of securities, cash or other assets. Securities shall 

be recorded at nominal value. In determining the value of the consideration, assets other than cash shall be 
considered at their fair values. 

 The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with 
the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee. Alternatively, it is 
transferred to General Reserve, if any. 

 The identity of the reserves shall be preserved and shall appear in the financial statements of the transferee in 
the same form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the transferor. 
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Note: 2  Investments  
 

 
  

    
Amt. (Rs.'in Lacs) 

    As At As At As At As At 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 

    Quantity 
 

Quantity 
 

      Non - Current Investment 
    Investment in Equity Instruments 
    

      

 
Unquoted Equity Shares ( At Breakup Value ) 

    

 

Eq. Sh of Rs. 10/- each of Rising Sunrock Products Pvt. 
Ltd. 32,000 96.122 32,000 95.905 

 

Eq. Sh. of Rs.10/- (100/-) each of Golden Medows Exports 
Pvt. Ltd. 305,000 146.980 305,000 147.270 

 
Eq. Sh of Rs. 10/- each of Safal Investments Ltd. 465,600 164.031 465,600 164.044 

 
Eq. Sh. of Rs. 10/- each of  Sangam Infratech Ltd. 1,224,800 220.464 1,224,800 217.171 

 

Eq. Sh. of Rs. 10/- each of  Forever Flourishing  Fin & Inv. 
Pvt. Ltd 15,400 131.528 15,400 140.628 

 

Eq. Sh. of Rs. 10/- each of  Attribute Shares & Securies 
Pvt. Ltd. - - 224,800 177.163 

 
Eq. Sh. of Rs. 10/- each of  Aditi Vincom Pvt. Ltd. 4,300 58.985 4,300 58.997 

 

Eq. Sh. of Rs. 10/- each of Laxmiramuna  Investments Pvt. 
Ltd. 70,000 52.906 70,000 53.306 

 
Eq. Sh. of Rs. 10/- each of  Varsha Mills Pvt. Ltd. 99,000 28.225 99,000 28.238 

 
Eq. Sh. of Rs. 10/- each of  KMP & Sans Trading Pvt. Ltd. 99,000 20.305 99,000 20.313 

 
Eq. Sh. of Rs. 100/- each of  Anjuli Realty Pvt. Ltd. 1,600 36.273 1,600 26.739 

 
Eq. Sh. of Rs. 10/- each of  Navyug Telefilms  Pvt. Ltd. 12,500 1.380 12,500 1.438 

 
Eq. Sh. of Rs. 10/- each of  Rathi Style & Textile Pvt Ltd 239,500 58.127 239,500 58.127 

 
Eq. Sh. of Rs. 100/- each of  Rama Dealcom Pvt. Ltd. 4,000 52.339 4,000 52.751 

      

   
1067.663 

 
1,242.088 

      
 

Investment in Partnership Firm & LLP 
    

 
3M Enterprises 

 
1005.882 

 
996.707 

      

 
Total value of investments in partnership firms & LLP 

 
1005.882 

 
996.707 

      

 
Total Non- current  Investments 

 
2073.546 

 
2,238.795 

      

 
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 

 
2259.434 

 
2,458.650 
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(Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

  
     

As At As At 

  
     

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Note 3 : Loans 
       Loans & Advances to Others    - - 

 
Loans & Advances to Related Parties 

  

- - 

 

Loans & Advances to Employees 

  

2.675 3.015 

       

2.675 3.015 

         Note 4 : Other Financial Assets 
     

 
Advance Against Property 

   
- - 

       
- - 

         Note 5 : Trade Receivables 
    

 
(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured; 

  
- - 

 

(b) Trade Receivables considered good - 
Unsecured; 

  
- - 

 

(c) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in 
Credit Risk; 

 
- - 

 
(d) Trade Receivables - Credit impaired 

  
- - 

  
Less:   Allowance for doubtful debts 

  
-       - 

       
-  -  

         Note 6 : Cash and Cash Equivalents 
    

  
Cash on Hand 

   
2.251 2.072 

  
Balance with Bank 

     

  
In Current Accounts 

   
1.580 0.845 

       
3.831 2.917 

         Note 7 : Other Financial Assests 
     

  

Advance recoverable in cash or kind value to 
be received 

  
0.011 0.066 

  
Income Tax Paid / adjusted  against Demand  

  
29.543 23.906 

  
Income  Tax Refundable 

  
- 5.912 

  
MAT Credit  

    
0.137 0.137 

       
29.691 30.020 

 
 

        Note 8 : Other Current Assets 
     

  
Other  Receivables  

  
232.000 233.850 

       
232.000 233.850 
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(Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

     As At As At 

     31.03.2024 31.03.2024 

Note 9 :  Equity Share capital 
     

  
Authorized Capital: 

     

  
23000000 (23000000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each  

 
2300.000 2300.000 

         

  
Issued Subscribed & Paid up Capital : 

   

  

21681771 (21681771)  Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
fully paid-up   

 
2168.177 2168.177 

       
2168.177 2168.177 

 

 

a. The reconciliation of number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 
31, 2024 and March 31, 2024 is set out below : 

  
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

  
      Numbers 

Amount in 
Thousands Numbers 

Amount in 
Thousands 

  

Number of share at the 
beginning of the year 

21681771 2168.177 21681771 2168.177 

  

Number of share at the 
end of the year 21681771 2168.177 21681771 2168.177 

         

 
b. Shareholding More than 5% 

 

 There is no Shareholder holding more than 5 percent Equity shares in the company as on 
reporting date. 

 
        

 
c. Shareholding of Promoters 

 

 The details of the sahre held by promoters as at March 31, 2024 are as follows : 

 

 

Promoter Name No. of Shares 
% of Total 

Shares 

% Change 
During The 

Year 

 

 Krishan Khadaria 714564 3.30 0.00 

 

 Asha Khadaria 207203 0.96 0.00 

 

 Sushila Devi Raghunath Prasad Khadaria 2794 0.01 0.00 

 

 Mohit Khadaria 3912 0.02 0.00 

 

 Mohini Krishan Khadaria 1397 0.01 0.00 

 

 Promoter Group 
   

 

 Mumbadevi Finance & Investment 
Company Private Limited 212382 0.98 0.00 
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Note 10 :  Other Equity       

 

  Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement in Equity balance.  

 

  
(Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

 
 A.  Summary of Other Equity balance As At As At 

 

      31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

 

 Capital Reserve     

 

 Opening Balance   9.062 9.062 

 

 Add: Addition during the year  - - 

 
 

   
  9.062 9.062 

 

 Less: Utilisation during the year  - - 

      
(a) 9.062 9.062 

  

Securities Premium Reserve 

   

  

Opening Balance  

  
8224.188 8224.188 

  

Add : Additional Premium on shares received 
during the year 

 
- - 

  

   

  
8224.188 8224.188 

  

Less : Calls in Arrears * 

 
4296.838 4296.838 

  

   

 
(b) 3927.350 3927.350 

  
   

    

  

Retained Earnings (c) (2693.831) (2500.573) 

  
   

    

  

Other Comprehensive Income (d) (1191.770) (1216.561) 

  
   

    

  
(a)+(b)+(c)+(d) 50.810 219.277 

         

 

*  This represents the additional premium receivable of Rs. 42,79,27,500/- on 68,25,000 shares 
of Rs. 10/- each and Rs. 17,56,250/- on 1,87,500 shares of Rs. 10/- each based on the pricing 
formula prescribed under chapterVII of SEBI ( Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements 
Regulation,2009) in respect of 1,13,12,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each alloted on 
Preferential basis in the F.Y.2013-14. 

         

 
 B.  Nature and purpose of reserves 

 

i Capital Reserve represents : 
   

 
 

Under the scheme of Arrangemant ( De-merger ), the excess of net assets taken, over the 
cost of consideration paid is treated as capital reserve. 

 

ii Securities premium reserve represents : 

 

 

The amount received in excess of face value of shares is recognised in securities premium 
reserve . In case of equity -settled share based payment transactions, the difference between 
fair value on grant  date and nominal value of share is accounted as Securities premium 
reserve. 

 

iii Retained Earnings represents 

  

Retaineed earnings  are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers 
to general reserve,dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. 

 

iv Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income: This represents the cumulative 
gains and losses  arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income, under an irrevocable option, net of amounts 
reclassified to retained earnings when such assets are disposed off. 
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(Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

    As At As At 

    31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Note 11 : Long-term Borrowings      

 

Unsecured Loan       

 

 Term Loan from Financial Institution   107.991 107.991 

 

 Less : Current maturity shown under the head Short-
term Borrowings (Ref. Note : 13) 

- - 

       
107.991 107.991 

         Note 12 : Other Non-current Liabilities 

   

  
Advance against Property  

  
12.800 12.800 

       
12.800 12.800 

         Note 13 :  Short-term Borrowings 
   

  
From Related Party 

 
- - 

  

Current maturity of Long-term Borrowings (Ref. 
Note : 11) - - 

       
- - 

         Note 14 : Trade Payables 
      

  
Due to Micro & Small Enterprises* 

 
0.250 0.250 

  
Due to Others 

 
1.705 0.091 

       
1.955 0.341 

         

 

* Based on and to the extent of information received by the Company from the suppliers 
regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006 (MSMED Act) and relied upon by the auditors, the relevant particulars as at the year-
end are furnished below: 

  

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED 
Act, as at the year end (since paid) 0.250 0.250 

  

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED 
Act, on the above amount as at the year end - - 

  

Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) 
beyond the appointed day, during the year  - - 

  

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other 
than Section 16)  - - 

  

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 
16) - - 

  

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED 
Act, for payments already made - - 

  

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year 
end to suppliers under MSMED Act - - 
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Trade Payable Oustanding Ageing Schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2024 and 
March 31, 2023 is as follows : 

  

       

  

(Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

  

Particulars Not Due 
Less then 

1 Year 
1-2 

years 
2-3 

years 

More 
than 3 
years 

Total 

  

Due to Micro 
Enterprises & Small 
Enterprises 

0.250 - - - - 0.250 

  

  0.250 - - - - 0.250 

  

Due to Others  - 1.705 - - - 1.705 

  

              -     
0.091 

- -  0.091 

  

Due to Others - 
UnDisputed 

- - - -  - 

  

  - - - -   

  

Due to Others  - 
Disputed 

- - - - - - 

  

  - - - -   

 

(Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

   As At As At 

   31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Note 15 : Other Financial current liabilities 
   

  
Statutory dues  

 
0.010 0.010 

    
0.010 0.010 

      (Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

  

  Year Ended Year Ended 

  

  31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Note 16 : Revenue from Operations 
   

  
 Sale of Product and Services  

 
- - 

    
- - 

      Note 17 : Other Income 
     Interset on Capital With  Partnership Firm & LLP 58.962 30.306 

  Interest on Income tax Refund  0.471 - 

  

Capital gain/ (Loss) on Sale of Shares - (39.373) 

  

Share of Profit/ (Loss) from 3M Enterprises  (19.536) (27.966) 

  

Provision not Required w/back 
 - 834.803 

    
39.897 797.771 
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As At 

 
 

As At 

   31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Note 18 : Employee Benefits Expenses 
   

  
Salaries , Bonus & allowances 

 
21.939 21.183 

  
Staff Welfare Expenses 

 
0.177 0.160 

    
22.116 21.343 

      Note 19 : Finance Cost  
   

  
Interest to Others  

 
0.025 - 

    
0.025 - 

      

Note 20 : Other Expenses 
   

  
Annual Listing Fees 

 
3.835 3.000 

  
Annual Custody Fees 

 
1.770 1.500 

  
Auditors' Remuneration  

 
0.250 0.250 

  
Conveyance Expense 

 
0.542 0.525 

  
Miscellaneous Expenses 

 
0.201 0.293 

  
Demat & Share Transaction Charges 0.015 0.009 

  
Compliance & Legal Expenses 

 
2.901 0.444 

  
Electricity Charges 

 
0.301 0.260 

  
Late Filing GST  

 
- - 

  
GST Credit W/off 

 
- 5.393 

  
Postage & Courier Charges 

 
0.184 0.026 

  
Printing & Stationery 

 
0.021 0.082 

  
Publishing Charges 

 
0.264 0.162 

  
RTA Charges (Share Transfer) 

 
0.605 0.568 

  
Sundry Balance Written Off 

 
- 0.250 

  
Telephone Charges 

 
0.099 0.066 

  
Travelling Expenses 

 
- 1.504 

    
10.987 14.332 

Note 21 : Segment Reporting 
  

 

The Company is mainly engaged  in trading in Agricultural Products. All activities of the company 
revolve around this main business. As such there are no separate reportable segments as per the 
Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (As 17). 

 

       

Note 22 : Related Party Disclosures   

 

As required under Accounting Standard 18 “Related Party Disclosure”, following are the details of 
transactions during the year with the related parties of the Company as defined in AS 18 : 

 
a) Director of the Company  

   

  
Mr. Krishan Khadaria Director  

  

  
Mrs. Asha Khadaria  Director  

  

  
Mr. Manoj Bhatia Independent Director  

 

  

Mr. Narendra Gupta (Resigned w.e.f 24th May 
2024)  Independent Director  
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Mrs. Niraali Thingalaya 
 

Independent Director  
 

 

  

Mr. Manaklal Bhanwarilal Agrawal (w.e.f 28th 
July 2024)                 Independent Director 

 

 
b) Other Key  Management Personnel 

   

  
Mr. Mohit Khadaria  Managing Director 

 

  
Mr. Rakesh Sahewal Chief Finance Officer  

 

  

Mr. Aashish Garg  Company Secretary  
 

  
  

    

 

c) Entities where control/significant influence by KMP and their relatives exists and with whom 
transactiona have taken place : 

  
Nouveau Global Ventures Limited 

   

  
Mystic Electronics Limited 

   

  
3M Enterprises 

     

  
Pearl Arcade Trading Private Limited 

   

  
Pearl Arcade Consultant Private Limited 

  
        

  
(Previous years figures in bracket) 

 
(Rs. In Thousands) 

  
Nature of Transactions   In relation  In relation  In relation  

  
      to (a) above to (b) above to (c) above 

  
Loans & Advances given - - 0.00 

  
  

  
- - 0.00 

  
Loans & Advances received back - - 0.00 

  
  

  
- - (1.64) 

  
Loans & Advances Received - - 0.00 

  
  

  
- - (24.45) 

  
Loans & Advances Given back - - 0.00 

  
  

  
- - (28.80) 

  
Reimbusement of Expenses - 0.09 1.72 

     
- (1.55) (1.40) 

  
Loans & Advances Outstanding as on 31st March, 2024   

  
Loan Taken 

    
0.00 

  
  

    
0.00 

  
Loan Given 

    
0.00 

  
  

    
0.00 

  
Borrowings Outstanding as on 31st March, 2024 

  

  
Investment Made  in Partnership  Firm/ LLP 

 
0.00 

  
  

    
(67.73) 

  
Refund Back 

    
30.25 

  
  

    
(79.50) 

  
Amount  Outstanding as on 31st March, 2024 

 
1005.88 

  
  

    
(996.71) 

  
Interest  on Capital Received  

 
58.96 

  
  

    
(30.31) 
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Note 23 : Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
  

      
Amount in lakhs 

      
As At As At 

      
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

 
 (i) Net Profit after tax as per statement of Profit and 

Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders  

(193.258) (808.957) 

    

 

(ii) 
 

Opening  number of equity shares used as 
denominator  

21681771 21681771 

  
Less : Effect of treasury shares  

 
- - 

  

Net Weighted Average number of equity shares used 
as 

21681771 21681771 

  
denominator for calculating EPS 

 
  

 
(iii) Basic & Diluted  Earning Per Share (in Rs.) (0.89) (3.73) 

 
(iv) Face value per share (in Rs.) 

 

10.00 10.00 

        
  

Note : The Company does not have any dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently the 
basic and diluted earning per share of the company remain the same. 

 

Note 24 : 
Contingent Liabilities ( To the Extent not 
Provided For ) Amount in Lakhs 

     Asst. Year 

For the year ended on 

     

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

 

In respect of pending appeal before Hon. 
ITAT(Appeals) 2015-16 - 1259.86 

 

In respect of pending appeal before Hon. 
ITAT(Appeals 2014-15 - 1049.94 

 

In respect of pending appeal before Hon. CIT 
(Appeal)-17, Mumbai 2013-14 11.72 11.72 

 

Note 25 : Financial Ratio 

          

 

Ratio Numerator Denominator 
F.Y. 

2023-
2024 

F.Y. 
2022-
2023 

Varaince 

Reason 
for 

change 
more 
than 
25% 

 

Current Ratio 
Current 
Assets 

Current 
Liabilities 

135.15 759.86 (0.82) N.A. 

 

Debt-equity 
Ratio 

Short term 
Debt+Long-
term 
Debt+Other 
Fixed 
Payment 

Share Holder 
Equity  

0.05 0.05 0.08 N.A. 
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Debt Service 
Coverage 
Ratio 

Annual Net 
Operating 
Income 

Annual Debt 
Payment 

0.00 170.52 (1.00) N.A. 

 

Return on 
Equity Ratio 

Net Profit 
After Tax 

Average Equity 
Shareholder's 
funds 

(0.08) (0.29) (0.71) N.A. 

 

Inventory 
Turnover 
Ratio 

Cost of Goods 
sold or Sales 

Average 
Inventory 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

 

Trade 
Receivables 
Turnover 
Ratio 

Not Applicable as there is no 
trade receivable in Company 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

 

Trade 
payables 
turnover 
Ratio 

Not Applicable as there are no 
Credit Purchase 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

 

Net capital 
turnover 
Ratio 

Revenue from 
operations 

Working 
Capital 

- - 0.00% N.A. 

 

Net Profit 
Ratio 

Net Profit After 
Tax 

Total Income (4.84) -1.01 3.78 N.A. 

 

Return on 
capital 
employed 

Profit before 
interest and 
taxes 

Capital 
Employed 
(Average 
Equity Funds 
+ Average 
total debt for 
the period) 

0.00 0.26 (0.99) N.A. 

 

Return on 
investment 

Income earned 
on investments 

Average 
investments 
for the 
period 

(0.03) (0.02) (2.69) N.A. 

 

Note 26 : Following are the additional disclosures required as per Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 
vide Notification dated March 24, 2021; 

          

 
a.  Details of Benami Property held: 

  

The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have 
been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the 
BenamiTransactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

  

        

 
b.  Willful Defaulter: 

  

The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution 
or other Lender or government or any government authority. 

  

        

 
c.  Relationship with Struck off Companies : 

  

During the year, the Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off 
under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 

  

        

 
d.  Compliance with number of layers of companies: 
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The Company does not have any subsidiary/ies and, therefore, compliance with number of 
layers of companies as specified in section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable 
to it. 

  

        

 
e.  Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium: 

  

During the financial year ended 31st March 2024, other than the transactions undertaken in 
the normal course of business and in accordance with extant regulatory guidelines as 
applicable. 

  

(i)  No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

  

(ii)  No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

  

        

 
f.  Undisclosed Income: 

  

The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961). Also, there are nil previously unrecorded income and related assets. 

  

        

 
g.  Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency: 

  

 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 
financial year. 

  

  

      

 
h.  Capital work in progress (CWIP) and Intangible asset: 

  

The Company does not have any CWIP and Intangible asset under development. 

  

  

      

 

i.  The Company does not hold Property, Plant and Equipment during the year as well as in 
previous year and hence revaluation of it is not applicable. The Company has not revalued its 
intangible assets during the current or previous year. 
 

Note 27 : 
 

 

Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to correspond 
with the current year's classification/disclosures. 

         

  

As per our report of even date. 
 
 
 For and on behalf of the board of directors 

  
For Sunil Vankawala & Associates   Mukta Agriculture Limited 

  
Chartered Accountants 

     

  

Firm Regn. No: 110616W 

 
Sd/- 

 
Sd/- 

      
Mohit Khadaria 

 
Krishan Khadaria 
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Sunil T. Vankawala 

  
Managing Director  

 
Director 

  
Proprietor 

  
 DIN : 05142395  

 
 DIN : 00219096  

  
M.No. 033461 

     

  
UDIN : 24033461BKCJPN3309 

    

  
Place : Mumbai 

  
Aashish Garg 

 
Rakesh Sahewal  

  
Dated :  23rd May, 2024 

  
Company Secretary  

 
CFO  
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the half year ended 31st March, 2024 

      A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

     (Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

   
As at 

 
As at 

   
31st March, 2024 

 
31st March, 2023 

 
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 

   

 
21681771 ( 21681771)  Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up   

 
2168.177 

 
2168.177 

      

 
Changes in Equity Share capital during the year - 

 
- 

 
Balance at the end of the reporting year 

 
2168.177 

 
2168.177 

 

B. OTHER EQUITY (Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

 

  Reserves and Surplus 
Items of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income (OCI) 

 

  

Capital 
Reserve 

Securities 
Premium 

Retained 
Earnings 

Total 

Equity 
instruments 
through OCI 

Total 

        

 
 Balance As at 1st April, 2021  9.062 3927.350 (1645.321) 2291.090 (1164.972) 1126.118 

 
 Profit for the year  - - (46.295) (46.295) - (46.295) 

 
 Other comprehensive income for the year  - - - - (16.517) (16.517) 

 
 Total comprehensive income for the year  - - (46.295) (46.295) 16.517 (29.778) 

 
 Balance As at 31st March,2022  9.062 3927.350 (1691.616) 2244.796 (1148.455) 1096.341 
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 Balance As at 1st April, 2022  9.062 3927.350 (1691.616) 2244.796 (1148.455) 1096.341 

 
 Profit for the year  - - (808.957) (808.957) - (808.957) 

 

 
Other comprehensive income for the year 

                                                                                     - - - - (68.106) (68.106) 

 
 Total comprehensive income for the year  

  
(808.957) (808.957) (68.106) (877.063) 

 
 Balance As at 31st March, 2023  9.062 3927.350 (2500.573) 1435.839 (1216.561) 219.277 

        

 
 Balance As at 1st April, 2023  9.062 3927.350 (2500.573) 1435.839 (1216.561) 219.277 

 
 Profit for the year  - - (193.258) (193.258) 

 
(193.258) 

 

Other comprehensive income for the year 
                                                                                     - - - - 24.791 24.791 

 
 Total comprehensive income for the year  

  
(193.258) (193.258) 24.791 (168.468) 

 
 Balance As at 31st March, 2024  9.062 3927.350 (2693.831) 1242.580 (1191.770) 50.810 
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Note - Fair value measurements 
   a.  Financial instruments by category 
   (Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

FVOCI Amortised Cost FVOCI Amortised Cost 

Financial Assets 
    Investments 
     - Equity / Pref instruments 1067.663 - 1242.088 - 

 - Partnership firms & LLP - 1005.882 - 996.707 

 - Mutual funds 
 

- 
 

- 

Trade receivables - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents - 3.831 - 2.917 

Other bank balances  - - - - 

Loans - 2.675 - 3.015 

Other financial assets - - - - 

Total financial asset 1067.663 1012.388 1242.088 1002.638 

Financial Liabilities 
    Borrowings - 107.991 - 107.991 

Trade payables - 1.955 - 0.341 

Other Financial Liabilities  - 0.010 - 0.010 

Total financial liabilities - 109.955 - 108.342 

 
b. Fair value hierarchy 

     (Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

Financial assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value - March 31 2024 

Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial Assets 
     

Investments 
      - Equity / Pref instruments 3 - - 1067.663 1067.663 

 - Mutual funds 
 

- - - - 

Total Financial Asset 
 

- - 1068 1068 

 
(Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

Financial assets and liabilities measured 
at amortised cost - March 31 2024 

Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial Assets 
     

Investments 
      - Partnership Firm 3 - - 1005.882 1005.882 

Trade receivables 7 - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 - - 2.917 2.917 

Other bank balances  
 

- - - - 
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Loans 3 - - 2.675 2.675 

Other financial assets 5 & 10 - - - - 

Total financial asset 
 

- - 1011.474 1011.474 

Financial Liabilities 
     Borrowings 
 

- - 107.991 107.991 

Trade payables 14 - - 1.955 1.955 

Other financial liabilities  15 - - 0.010 0.010 

Total financial liabilities 
 

- - 109.955 109.955 

      Financial assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value - March 31 2023 

Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial Assets 
     

Investments 
      - Equity / Pref instruments 3 - - 1242.088 1242.088 

 - Mutual funds 
 

- - - - 

Total financial asset 
 

- - 1242.088 1242.088 

      (Amount in rupees Lakhs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

Financial assets and liabilities measured 
at amortised cost - March 31 2023 

Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial Assets 
     

Investments 
      - Equity / Pref instruments 3 - - - - 

 - Partnership firms & LLC 3 - - 996.707 996.707 

 - Mutual funds 
 

- - - - 

Trade receivables 0 - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 - - 2.917 2.917 

Other bank balances  
 

- - - - 

Loans 3 - - 3.015 3.015 

Other financial assets 5 & 10 - - - 
 Total financial asset 

 
- - 1002.638 1002.638 

Financial Liabilities 
     Borrowings 
 

- - 107.991 107.991 

Trade payables 14 - - 0.341 0.341 

Other financial liabilities  15 - - 0.010 0.010 

Total financial liabilities 
 

- - 108.342 108.342 
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